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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport
Privaie Limited) ‘

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Delhi International
Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited) (“the Company™ or
“DIAL™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaic standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements® section of cur report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the “Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial

statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fuifilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation fo these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial staternents. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis
for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Assumption used for valuation of Call Spread Options (as described in note 31.2 and note 36 of

the standalone Ind AS finoncial statemernis)

The Company has purchased derivative financial
instruments, i.e. call spread options to hedge its
foreign currency risks relating to the long-term
debt issued in foreign currency.

Management has designated these derivative
financial instruments and the aforesaid debt at
initial recognition as cash flow hedge relationship
as per Ind AS 109,

The valuatior: of hedging instrument is complex,
and necessitates a sophisticated system to record
and track each contract and calculate the related
valuations at each financial reporting date, Since
valuation of Thedging instruments and
consideration of hedge effectiveness involves
both ‘significant assumptions and judgements’
and involvement of management’s expert, and
therefore, is subject to an inherent risk of error.

We have identified valuation of hedging
instruments as a key audit matter in view of the
significant judgements, estimates and complexity
involved.

Our audit procedures to assess hedge accounting
included the following:

s assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over derivativé financial
instruments and the related Thedge
accounting;

¢ reviewed the documentation for the
designated hedge instrument which defines
the nature of hedge relationship;

o considered the consistent application of the
accounting policies and assessed the hedge
accounting methodologies applied; and
compared these to the requirements of Ind
AS 109;

» assessed the reasonability of the inputs and
assumptions used, while valuing the hedging
instruments;

s involved a specialist in testing the fair values
of derivative financial instruments and |
compared the results to management’s
results;

o reviewed the related disclosures in note 31.2
and note 36 to the standalone Ind AS
finaneial statements;
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Non-consideration of certain incomes/credits for caleuiation of Monthly Annual Fee (MAF)

payable to Alrport Authority of India (AAY) (as described in note 31.1 and note 40(1) of the

standaione Ind AS financlal statements)

As per the Concession Agreement (OMDA)
entered with AAT in April 2006, the Company is
required to pay annual fee (AF) to AAT at 45.99%
on its projected revenue, which is paysble in
twelve equal monthly instalments (MAF).

Per the management; certain incomes / credits
arising on adoption of Ind-AS were not in
contemplation of parties in April 2006 when
OMDA was entered, and they do not represent
receipts from business operations or from any
external sources, and therefore these incomes /
gredits should not form part of Revenue for the
purpose of calculation of MAF payable to AAL

Therefore, the Company, based on legal opinion,
has provided MAF to AAI based on Revenue as
per Ind AS Financial Statements after adjusting
such incomes/credits.

We identifisd the non-consideration of these
incomes/credits for calculation of MAF payable
to AAl as a key audit matter, because of its
significance to the financial statements and it
involves significant management judgements.

Our audit procedures to assess the calculation of
MAF included the following:

s evaluating the legal opinion obtained by
management,

o checking the exclosions made by the
Company on the basis the legal opinion,

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal conirols over MAF payable and
related accounting;

» verifying representations made by the
Company to AAl containing these
exclusions;

« reviewed the related disclosures in note 31.1
and note 40(i) to the standalone Ind AS
financial statements with respect to these
significant judgements for calculating MAF.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financia! statements and our aaditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available

to us after the date of this anditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the standatone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3} of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness -
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statemenis that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
staterments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaterent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone [nd AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fiaud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we ar¢ also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncettainty exists, we are required to draw afttention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concerf

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contro! that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financiaf
year ended March 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in tetms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repott that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
. knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
© far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(2) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section: 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Anmexure 2” to this report;

(2) In our opinicn, the matiagerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the prov1s1ons of section 197 read

with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i,  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 33(I[)(2) to (f) to the standalone
Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as requited under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts;

{ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For K.S. Rac & Co.
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004  ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0031098
Chartered Accountants Ch Accountagts

per Hitesh Kumar P

ogesh Midha

artner Partner
Membership Number: 094941 Membership Number: 233734
Place: New Delhi Place:

Date: May 2, 2019 Date: May 2, 2019
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Annexure-1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other fegal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Adrport Private Limited)
{(“the Company™)

)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

()

(vi)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b}

(c)

(a)

(a)

(b

(©

details and sifuation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous years in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

'The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. There was no

inventory lying with third parties,

The Company has granted loars to its Intermediate Holding Company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given us, the terms and condition of the grant of such loans are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The Company has granted loans to its“[ntermediate Holding Company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are

regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to its Intermediate Holding Company listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety

days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company putsuazt to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to aeronautical services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examinaticn of the same.
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{vi)) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,

(b)

(c)

sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight defay in & case of service tax.,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service
tax, excise duty, custom duty, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

According to the records of the Company, the dues of income tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service
tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and service tax and cess which have not

been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows*:

Name of | Nature of Dues Amount | Period to which | Forum where
the {Rs. in | amount relates dispute is
statute Crores) pending
Income Taxability of Passenger Service Fee | 21.39 Assessment Year: | Income  Tax
Tax Act, | (Security Component), Taxability of 2007-08 Appellate
1961 Upfront fee, capital work in progress Tribunal
disallowance on accourt of capital © | (ITAT).

expenditure under secticn 14A of the
Act., Disallowance under soction

40(a)ia) of the Act.
[ncome Taxability of Passenger Service Fee | 42,50 Assessment Year; | Delhi High
Tax  Act, | (Security Component), Disallowance | 2008-09 Court
1961 on account of capital expenditure,

Disallowance of payment of gratuity,
Disallowance under section 40{a)(ia):
of the Act, Disallowance of club
expenses, Disallowance under Section
14A of the Act, Issue of SFIS Duty
Credit Scrips.

Finance (i) Non Payment of Service Tax on | 1.56 Financial  year | Commissioner,
Act 1994 | License Fees / lease rentals, 2006-07 to 2009- | Service tax,
10 New Delhi
Finance Non-payment  of  Service  Tax | 0.07 Financial  year | Commissioner
Act 1994 | on License Fees / lease rentals, 2011-12 {Apr — | of Service Tax,
June’2010) New Delhi.
Finance Wrong availment of service tax on the | 0.22 | Financial ~ year Additional
Act 1994 | payment made towards esmployee’s 2011-12. Commissionsr
medical insurance. of Service Tax,
New Delhi.
Finance (i) Service tax on the supply of | 2.35 Financial year: Commissioner
Aci 1994 | electricity and watet 2009 -10 to 2013~ | of Service tax

14

* Dispute under Income Tax Act 1961, wherein disallowances resulting in reduction in ‘returned
loss” as per return of income have not been considered for above disclosure. Tax impact of

reduction in loss amounts to Rs. 55,81 crores.
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{viil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders. ‘

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
comiented upon.

{x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013,

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as require«

by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential dllotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, repotting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Resetve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP For K. 8. Rao & Co.,
[CAIT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 Firm Registration Number: 0031095
Chartered Accountants Chartered Account?nts

per Yogesh Midha per Hitesh Kumar P
Partner Partner

Membership Number: 094941 Membership Number: 233734
Place: New Delhi Place:

Date: May 02, 2019 Date: May 02, 2019
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ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DELHI
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS DELHI
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT PRIVATE LIMITED) -

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi International Airport
Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of
March 31,2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date,
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Director is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with refetence to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respeets.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporiing with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectivensss of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these

standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements '

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference o these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principies. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1}
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standaione Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements to future perjods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate,
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls cver
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Tndia.

For S.R, BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATESLLP For K. 8. Rao & Co. .
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 Firm Registration Number: 0031095
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accounta?ts

hY

per Yogesh Midha per Hitesh Kumar P
Pariner Pariner

Membership Number; 094941 Membership Number: 233734
Place: New Delhi . Place:

Date: May 02,2019 Date; May 02, 2019




Deihi Interuational Airport Limited (formarly known as Delhi lnternationni Airpovt Private Limited)
CIN: U633 DL200SPLC146936 '
Standalone Balanee Sheet as of March 31, 2010

{All amounds in Rupees ¢vore, axcepl otherwise stated)

March 31, 2019 march 31, 2018
ASSETS
(1) . Non-curvent ussets
Praperty, plant and equipmsnt 4 6,:484.51 6,806.21
Capital work in progress 4 245,90 194 44
Intanpibie assets 5 387.29 395.20
Tnvestment in subsidiary, associates and joinl ventures 41 289,37 289.37
Financial assels
(i) Investment 6.2 0.0 .01
(i) Loans 7 1.89 2.46
(i) Other financial assets 8 329,24 120
Other non-current assets "8 930,49 10.43
Current tax assets 63,79 45.8%
8,752,49 7,743.27
(2) Current nssets
Inventeries . 11 7.33 6.39
Financisl sssets
{1} Invastments 6.3 1,455,491 2.584.46
{11) Trade receivablas 1. 52513
(it} Cash and cash equivalents 13 22634 374.97
(iv) Bank balance other than cash and cash squivalents 14 398.94 9127
(v) Loans 1 401,35 1.58
(vi) Other finantial assets 8 330,65 123.16
Qther ourrent assets 9 37.64 40,18
297537 374714
Total Assels 11,727,586 1049241
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Cauity
Eeuity Share Capital 15 2,430,00 2.450.00
Other Equily
{1} Retained earnings 16 282,48 422.57
(i1) Cash flow hedge reserve 16 £14.44) (4.49)
2,718.04 2,868.08
(2) Non-current liabilitles
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowinas . 17 5,564.08 5,249.12
(if} Other financial liabtlities 18, . 337.51 32302
Deferred revenue 19, . 1,901.00 1,577.23
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 10 101.60 224,87
Other non-current liabilities 20 61,10 102.57
Lang, teren provisions 22 - 1.45
7,265,860 7,478.26

(3)  Current liabilliies
Finanoial Liabilities
{i} Trade pavables 21
~Total outstanding dues of miaro enterprises and small entetprises 519 7.35

~Totaf outstanding dues of creditors other than 296,68 416.60
micro enterprises and small enternrises

(if) Other financial liabilities 18. 388,34 442,88

Deferred revenue 19. . 108,14 85.94

Other current liabilities 20 : 198,21 14339

Short term provisions 22 43.13 40.64

Liabilities for current tax {net) 9,27 9.27

1,043,596 1,146 67

Total liabilities .009.82 8,624.33

11,727,806 17,482 41

Total equity and linbilities

Summary of signifieant aceounting policies 3 -
02, 2019

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these standalone financials statements and have been taken on record by the board of directors vide their meeting dated May

For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors of

As per our report of gvon data
Dalhi International Airport Limited

For K.5. Rao & Co.
ICAT Firm Registration Na. : 0031095

As per our report of even date

For 3R, BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLY
1CAL Firm Reglstration No. ¢ 101049W/E300004
Chartzred Accouniants

per Yogesh Midha per Hitesh Kumar P G.B.S Rajn
Partner Partner Munaging Director ime Director
Mermbership na: 094941 Membership no: 233734 DIN-0D0S 1686

Place: New Dethi
Date : May 02, 2019
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Date: May 02, 2018 “ M
\ /

Videh Kumar Jaipuriar  Hag)
Chiaf Bxecutive Officsr  Chief Fiyancial Oficer

Saucabh Snin
Company Secretary
Place: New Dethi
Date : May 02,2019




Delhi [ntornational Airport Limited {formerly known s Delhl Laternational Alrpoet Private Limited)
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Standalong Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amonnts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated)

Particulars Noies March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

I REVENUE
Revenue from perations 23 3,262.65 1,680.97
Other income 24 530,61 361.87
Totel Incoine (1) N 3,793.26 4.042 84
Il EXPENSES !
Annual fee to Airporis Authority of India (AAI} [refer nate 40(1)) ’ . L5125 1,761.47
Employse benaflts expense 25 18648 165.24
Depreciation and amertization expense 26 439.82 645.90
Finance costs 27 $29.59 579.15
Other expenses 28 972,99 031.68
Total Expense (11 4020,13 4.083 44
NI (Loss) before tax [{Ti-(LI (226.8M {40.60)
Currant tax - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier yoars 10 - (4.88)
Deferred tax foredit) 10 {115,10) (73.97)
IV Total Tax (credit) (115,10} (18,35}
¥ (Luss) Prodit for the year (I1I-IV} (11%.77) 38.75

Other Comprohensive lncome )
A Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or foss in subseauent years

Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans (2.28) 0.77
Ingome tax effect nig 0.27)
B Itams that will be reclassified te¢ profit or loss in subsequent years
Net movement of cash flow hedges ' 29 (15.31) 18,88
Income tax effect 536 (6.53)
WIII Total Other Comprahensive (Loss)income for the vear (net of tax) (A+B} [T +)] 12.85
IX Totai Comprehensive {Lossy Income for ¢he year (net of tax) (VII+VIII) (121,50 L0
X (Lass) Earnings per equity share: [nominal value of shave Re. 10 (March 31, 2018 ; Rs. 10)]
(1) Basio 3 (D.46) . %16
(2) Diluted 30 (0.461 0.16
Symmary of significant acconnting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financials staternents and have been taken on record by the board of directers vide their meeting dated May 02, 2019,
As per our repont of sven date As per our report of even date For and on behaif of the Beard of Directors of
Tor S.R. BATLIBOT & ASSOCIATES LLP TFor K.S, Rao & Co. Drelhi Intevnational Airport Limited
ICAT Firm Registration No. : 101049W/E300804 ICAI Flem Registeation No, ¢ 0031098

Chatterad Accountants Chartered Acoountants Y

per Yopesh Midha per Kumar P 7.B.8 Raju K. Na ni Keo
Partnes Pariner anaging Directar Who#lime Director

Membership no: 094941 Membership no: 233734 IN-00051686 DIN-00016262

Piace: New Delhi Place: Banpalury
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Dats | May 92,2019
Videh Kumar Jaipuriar

’//?:”}_‘\:5\(5? Chief Executive Officer  ClfieHPinancial Officer
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Chﬁr{ered Saursbl Jain

Company Secretary
Place: [N&W Deth)
Date : May 02, 2019
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delli Intornationul Aivpoct Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL200GPLC146536

Standalone Statement of Change ln Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

(AR amounts in Ruuegs crare, axcept otherwise stated)

Reserves and Swrplus

Item of OCI
Equity ahare eapital Retained earnings Cash flow hedgo reserve* Total equity

Balunes as at March 31, 2017 2.450,00 575.49 {16.84) 3,008.65
Profits for the year - 38.25 . 3825
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - 0.50 12.35 12.85
Payrnent of dividends (Refer Note 16,1) - {152.25) - (159.25)
Dividend distribution tax (Refer Note 16,1} - (12.42) - (32.42)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,450,00 422,57 (4.49) 2,368.08
Adjustment in retained earning for ehange in accounting

nalicy (net of tax) ) (s.0) v i5.02)
Depreciation charge to retained enrnings {23.12} . (23.12)
Loss for the year . {L1077) - {11L.77)
Qther comprehensive lass fnet of tax) - (.18} (9.95) {10.13)
Balance as at March 31,2019 2,450,00 282.48 (14.44) 2,718,04

Snmmary of significant accounting policies (Refer Note 3)

#The Company had entered into “Call spread Ogtien” with various banks for hedging the repayment of 6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 288.75 million and 6,125% Senior secured
notes (2026) of USD 522,60 million, which are repayable in February 2022 and October 2026 respectively, The Company has adopted the Cash Flow Hedge accounting for Call spread Options
2 per Ind AS 109, Accordingly, the sffective portion of the gain or Joss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reservo, while any ineffective podtion is
recognised immediately in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The accompanying rotes are ax integral part of these standalons financials statements and have been taken on record by the board of direstors vide their meeting dated May 62, 2019,

As per our report of sven date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSCCIATES LLP
ICAI Firm Registeation No. : 101049W/E300604
Chartered Accountants

per Yagesk Midha
Partner

Membership no; 094941
Place: Naw Delhi
Date : May 02, 2019
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Partner
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Date . May 02, 2019
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Videh Kumar Jaipuriar
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Deihi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Deihi International Aivport Private Limited)
CIN, {J63033DL2006PLC146936¢

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the yeur ended Mayeh 31, 2019
{All amounts in Rupees crore, excopt otherwise stated)

Notes March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss} before tax (226.87)
Adiustment to reconcile profit before lax Lo ket cash flaws
Depreciation and amortization expanses 639.82 645.90
Provision for Bad debts / Bad Debts Written off 0.17 031

(40,60)

Inigrest incoine on deposits/current investment (162.93) (47.47)
Exchange differences varealised (nat) ) 9791 (54.15)
Gain on sale of current invesiments-Mutual fund (125.55) (125.03)
Income from Duty credit serips (55.110) {30.27)
Laoss on discard of Property Plant and Equipments . 0.08
Dividend Incoma on non ourrent investments carried at cost (63,59) {67.76)
Tnterest on Borrowings 381.08 346,88
Call spread option premium 194,56 153.65
Rent expenses on financial assets carried at armortised cost .51 047
Interest expenses on financial Hability carcied at amortised cost 48,04 7441
Deferred income on financial liabilities carried at amortized cost (108.59) (75.60)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or less (1.03) (23.57)
678,007 753.25
Working eapital adjustments;
(Decraase) in trada payables {122.95} (19.75)
(Decrzasa) in other non current liabilities (44.42) (10.38)
5242 (63.76)

increase/Decrease) in other ourrent liabilities

Inerease/{Decrease) in non current deferred revenue 430,27 (12409
Inerease#Decrease) in current deferred revenue 15.20 0.24)
{Decrease) in non current financial labilities (32.30) (3L.51)
{Decreass)/Increase In current financial liabilities (51.77) 141.84
Decrease in trade receivables 407,25 373.44
{Increase)/Decreass in inventories {0.04) 1.03
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current assets (0.67) 0.04
Decrease/(Increase) in other current assets 2.34 {3.66)
(Tucrease) in other ourrent financial assets (13837) (34.93)
(Increase) in other Non cutrent financial assets (13437 {097y
Decrease/(Inerease) in non current loans 0.57 {0.82)
Daareass in gurrent loans n.23 0.58
(Decrease)Incroase in non eurrent provisions (1.45) 0.24
Increase in curent provisions 477 4.15
Cash generated from operations 1,064.07 984,46
Direot taxes paid (net) (17.94) (17.93)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 1,046.13 966,53
Cagh flpws From investing activities '
Purchase of property plant and equipments, including capital work in progress and capital advances (1,336,38) (185.77)
Purchase of non-current investments . - (108.33)
Purchase of current invastments (16,997.47} (14,814.91)
Sale/maturity of current investments 18,253.12 14,634.39
Tnter corparate deposits given (400.00} -
Dividend Income 63.52 67.76
Tnteragt received 88.92 43.48
Investment of targin Money Deposit 0.01) .01
Investinents in other fixed deposits with ariginal maturity of more than three months {net) 307.67) {45.27)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B} (636.40) (448,66}

{1he space hay been intenrionally left blank)




Dethi International Airport Limited (formerky known as Dethi International Airport Private Limited)
CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936

Standalens $tatement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupces crore, except otherwise stated)

Notes March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flows [rom financing acfivities
Final dividend paid - (159.25)
Dividend distribution tax - (32.42)
Option premium paid (194.19) (144.49)
Tnterest paid (364,17) (340.86)
Net cagh flows used in financing activities (C) ) {558.36) (677.02)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (148.63) 17915
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 374,97 554,12
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 126.34 374,97
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.04 0.02
Cheques/ drafts on hand 0.3% 0.48
With banks
- on curent ascount 26,08 110.91
- on deposit ascount 20000 263,56
Totat cash and cash equivilents (Refer Note [3) 226,34 374,97
Swmmary of significant accounting poligies : 3

Explanatory notes to statement of cashflows
1. The above cash flow statement has been compiied from and is based on the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the related standalone statement of profit and loss for the year

2, Cash and cash equivalents include Rs. 0.56 erore (Mareh 31, 2018; Rs, 1,23 wrore) pertaining to Marketing Fund, to be used for sales promational activities,

3, Changes in ligbilities arising from financing activities:-
Particulars s Liabilities arising from finnneing activities Assets held to hedge long
ferm borrovines
Borrowings Interest accrued on Derivative ingtrament-
Borrewings Cash flew hedge- call
— soead.antion.
As at Mareh 31, 2018 . 5,249.12 105.33 0,97
Cash flows . - (364,17} {194.19
Nen-cash changes
Finance cost 8.23 3282 194,56
Foreign sxchange Buctuation X 307.30 - -
Change in Fair valugs - - 193.29
Ag at March 31, 2019 5,504.65 113.98 194,63
1, The accompanying nGtes ace an integral part of fhese standalone financials statements and have besn faken on record by the board of directors yide thelr mecting dated May 02, 2019,
As per our report of even date As per our report of ever dafe Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP TFor K.8. Rao & Co. Delhi International Airport Limited
{CAI Firm Registration No. : 101049W/E300004 LCAI Firm Registration No. : 0031058
Chartered Accountants Chartgred Accountants f
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U630633DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2819

{All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited) {‘DIAL’ or
‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. It was incorporated as a Private Limited
Company on March 1, 2006 under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, (replaced with
Companies Act 2013 with effect from April 1, 2014) and was converted into a Public Limited Company w.e.f.
April 10, 2017. DIAL is into the business of managing the operations and modernization of the Indira Gandhi
International Airport (*Delhi Airport’). GMR Alirports Limited (‘GAL’) a subsidiary of GMR Infrastructure
Limited (‘*GIL”) holds majority shareholding in the Company. DIAL had entered into Operation, Management
and Development Agreement (‘OMDA’) with Alrports Authority of India (*AAT"), which gives DIAL an
exclusive right to operate, maintain, develop, modernize and manage the Delhi Airport on a revenue sharing
model for an initial term of 30 years, which can be extended by another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms
and conditions pursuant to the provisions of the OMDA.

2. (A) Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
armended from time to time and presentation requirement of division IT of Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the standalone financial statements,

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted ot a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in

use.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on an accrual basis, except
for the following assets and labilities, which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

+ Derivative Financial Instruments
s Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which
have been measured at fair value.

(B) Going Concern:

The Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (“AERA™) vide its powers conferred by Section 13(1) (a) of the
AERA Act, 2008 passed an Aeronautical tariff order Viz. 03/2012-13 issued on April 24, 2012 which determined
the Aeronautical tariff to be levied at Dethi Airport for the fourth and fifth year of tariff period of first Control
period of 5 years period (i.e. 2009 - 2014). DIAL vide appeal no 10/2012 had filed an appeal before Airport
Economic Regulatory Authority Appellate Tribunal (*AERAAT”) on certain disputed issues in the Tariff order
of first control period No.03/2012-13. Subsequently, Hon’ble High Court of Delhi vide its final order dated
January 22, 2015, against the writ petition filed by the Company in this matter, ordered that the tariff determined
by AERA for the first control Period shall continue till the disposal of the appeals pending against said Tariff

Order, by AERAAT.

Subsequently, AERA also released the tariff order No. 40/2015-16 (‘AERA order’) dated December 08, 2015
(issued on December 10, 2015) for second control period i.e. 2614 -2019, DIAL filed an appeal with AERAAT
against some of the matters of order No. 40/2015-16 on January 11, 2016,

Further, Ministry of Finance vide the notification dated May 26, 2017, Part XIV of Chapter VI of the Finance
Act, 2017 directed the merger of Appellate Tribunal under the Airports Economic Regulatory Authority Act,
2008 (FAERA Act”) i.e. AERAAT into Telecom Disputes Settlernent and Appellate Tribunal (TDSAT).




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. Ue3033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, on SLP filed by Air India, vide its judgement dated July 03, 2017, has
vacated the order of Hon’ble High Court of Dethi and directed TDSAT to dispose off the appeals of DIAL in

the next two months,

Accordingly, DIAL implemented the Tariff order No. 40/2015-16 dated December 08, 2015 with immediate
effect i.e, from July 08, 2017 as per directions of Director General of Civil Aviation dated Fuly 07, 2017.

DIAL’s appeal no.10/2012 with respect to first control period has been concluded along with the appeal of
_certain airlines. TDSAT vide its order dated April 23, 2018 has passaed the order, which provides clarity on the
issues which were pending for fast six years and has laid down the principles to be followed by AERA in the
third control period starting from April 1, 2019. The Company expects the uplift impact of the TDSAT order to
reflect in the tariff determination by AERA for the next control period i.e. 2019 2024, DIAL’s appeal against
the second contro! period shall be heard in due course.

DIAL has filed an appeal in the Hon'ble Supreme Court of [ndia on July 21, 2018 for few matters in respect of
TDSAT order dated April 23, 2018 and same was listed on September 4, 2018 wherein, Hon ble Supreme Court
has issued notices in the matter. The matter was listed before Registrar on February 22, 2019 wherein last
opportunity has been granted to AERA and airlines to file their arguments. The matter has been re-notified for

May 8, 2019.

During the year, AERA has issued tariff order with respect to Base Airport Charges for the second control period,
which the airport operator is entitled to receive as minimum charges in accordance with Schedule 6 of State
Support Agreement (SSA) read with Schedule 8 of the SSA. The order on the Base Alrport Charges was issued
on November 19, 2018 (except the order for baggage X-ray charges), and revised tariff made applicable from
December 1, 2018, The order for baggage X- ray charges had heen issued on January 10, 2019 and effective
from February 1, 2019,

DIAL has filed tariff proposal for the third control period starting April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2024 with the
regulator on November 27, 2018. Further, as the second control period completed on March 31, 2019, DIAL
requested the AERA to extend the current tariff till the tariff for third control period is determined. Accordingly,
AERA vide order no 48/2018-19 dated March 23, 2019 extended the prevailing tariff for DIAL till September
30, 2019 or determination of tariff for third control period, whichever is earlier. .

Basis the cash projections prepared by the management of the Company for the next one year, the management
expects to have cash profit. Further considering the Company’s business plans and the availability of sufficient
cash reserves as at March 31, 2019, the management do not foresee any uncertainty in continuing its business/
operations and meeting its liabilitles for the foreszeable future and accordingly, these standalone financial
statements have continued to be prepared on a going concern basis,
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Delhi International Airpert Limited (formerly known as Delhi Internati.enal Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(AH amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Change in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption
of these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact
on the financial statements of the Company, The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Conftracts with Customers

The Company has adopted the Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” with effect from April 1,
2018 as notified on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard supersede all previous revenue recognition requirements
under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are
transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services, Adoption of the new rules has affected the timing of revenue recogaition
for certain transactions of the Company. Ind AS 115 permits two possible methods of transition:

- Retrospectively to each prior reporting petiod presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 [Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors] with the option to elect certain practical
expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or

- Retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date
of initial application (April 1, 2018) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind

AS 115 (the modified retrospective method).

The Company has applied the modified retrospective approach and accordingly, the application of Ind AS 115
has impacted the Company’s accounting for advance from customers with consequential impact on deferred
taxes and debited the retained earnings at April 1, 2018 by Rs. 5.02 crore (net of tax). Due to the application of
Ind AS 115, revenue for the period is higher by Rs. 4.80 crore, finance expense is higher by Rs. 2.41 crore,
deferred tax expense is lower by Rs. 0.81 crore and profit after tax is higher by Rs. 1.58 crore,

The cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 is recognised at the date of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under Ind AS [ and Ind AS 18.

Amendmenti to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acquired free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangible asset may be acquired free of charge, or for nominal
consideration, by way of a government grant. [n accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government Assistance, an entity may choose o recogaise both the intangible asset and the
grant initially at fair value. If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset initially at fair value, the entity
recognises the asset initially at a nominal amount plus any expenditure that is directly attributable to preparing
the asset for its intended use. The amendment also clarifies that revaluation model can be applied for asset which
is received as government grant and measured at nominal value. These amendments do not have any impact on

the Company’s financial statements,




Deihi International Ajrport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63633DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Company’s financial

statements.
Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future faxable prefits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying

amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of the
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening
retained earnings {or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between
opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporaty
differences ot assets that are in the scope of the amendments. '

b. Use of estimates

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the teported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
lizbilities at the date of the standalone financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financials statements have been disclosed
in Note 31. Accounting estimates could change from year to year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates, Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates, Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial
statements in the year in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the

standalone financial staternents.

b. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
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A liability is current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, ot
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢, Investments in Associates, Joint Ventures and Subsidiary

The Company has accounted for its investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaty at cost.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the items,

Assets under installation or under construction as at the balance sheet date are shown as “Capital work-in-
progress (CWIP)”. However, CWIP relating to the development fund are being net off from the Development
fee accrued (to the extent not utilized) and are not included in CWIP. Expenditure including finance charges
directly relating to construction activity is capitalised.

Capital work in progress includes leasehold improvements under development as af the balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced, Further, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are

incurred,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cartying
amount of the asset} is included in the standalone statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Development fee related to an asset, (net of direct amount incurred to earn aforesaid development fee) is
deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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e. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the useful lives
prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets class i.e. Internal Approach
Roads, Electric Panels and Transformers/Sub-station, the Company, based on a technical evaluation, believes
that the useful life of such property, plant and equipment is different from the useful life specified in Schedule
I to Companies Act 2013. The following is a comparison of the useful lives of these property, plant and
equipment as adopted by the Company and those prescribed under Schedule [f to the Companies Act, 20 13:

Tvpe of Assets Useful life .as estimated by the | Useful life as prescribed in

R Company based on technical | Schedule II to the Companies |
evaluation Act, 2013

Roads - Other than RCC 10 years > years

Transformers/Power  Sub-Stations 13 years 10 years

(included in Plant and Machinery)

Electric Panels (included in Electrical | 13 years 10 years

Installations and Equipment}

The useful life of property, plant and equipment which are not as per schedule II of the Companies Act 2013,
have been estimated by the management based on internal technical evaluation.

The Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the asset’s useful life; or
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ownership at the end of lease term. ‘
On June 12, 2014, the Airport Economic Regulatory Authority (“the Authority”) has issued a consultation paper
viz.05/2014-15 in the matter of Normative Approach to Building Blocks in Economic Regulation of major
Airports wherein it, interalia, mentioned that the Authotity proposes to lay down, to the extent required, the
depreciation rates for airport assets, taking into account the provisions of the useful life of assets given in
Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013, that have not been clearly mentioned in the Schedule IT of the
Companies Act, 2013 or may have a useful life justifiably different than that indicated in the Companies Act,
2013 in the specific context to the airport sector. Pursuant to above, the Authority has fssued order no. 35/2017-
18 on January 12, 2018 which is further amended on April 09, 2018, in the matter of Determination of Useful
fife of Airport Assets, which will be effective from April 01, 2018.

‘Accordingly, the management is of the view that useful lives considered by the Company for most of the assets
except passenger related Furniture and Fixtures are in line with the useful life proposed by AERA in its order
dated January 12, 2018, which is further amended on April 09, 2018,

In order to align the useful life of passenger related Furniture and Fixtures as per AERA order, the Company has
revised the useful life and charged the depreciation of Rs. 23.12 crore related to the assets whose life were
expired by March 31, 2018 to other equity as at April 01, 2018 and depreciation of Rs. 2.37 crore to the
standalone statement of profit and loss. ‘

Leasehold Improvements are improvements, betterments, or modifications of leased property which will benefit
the Company for the period of more than one year. The amount of leasehold improvements are capitalised and
armortised over the period of lease or useful life whichever is less.
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f. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Intangible assets include software, upfiont fee paid as airport concessionaire rights and other costs (excluding
operation support costs) paid to the Airports Authority of India (AAI) pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the OMDA.,

g, Amortisation of intangible asse(s

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impeirment whenever there is an
" indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits erabodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in these

standalone financial statements.

The Company amortises, upfront fee paid as airport concession rights and other costs paid to AAT referred to
above are recognized and amortized over the initial and extended period of OMDA i.e. 60 years. Other intangible
assets are amortised over the useful life of asset or six years, whichever is lower.

h. Government Grant and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurarce that
(i) the Company will comply / have complied with the conditions attached to them, and
(ii) the grant / subsidy will be received.

When the grant/ subsidy relates to revenue, it is redognizcd under other income in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period of receipts of such grant/ subsidy, at the amount expected to be realized.

i. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed on EIR basis in the period in which they accur,

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in counection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the -

borrowing costs.
j- Leases

The determination of whether an agreement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent

on the use of a specific assef or assets and the arrangement conveys aright to use the asset or assets, ever if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Company as a lessee:

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at fair value of the leased property on inception
date or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned betweet
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the standalone statement of profit and
loss, unless they are directly attributable to quaiifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance
with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. :

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Income from operating fease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease,

Tnitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
_recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. Leases are clagsified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfers from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the

net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

k. Inventories

Tnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis and includes other directly associated costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’
{CGUs) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The tecoverable amount is determined for an
‘individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amouet, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use, the sstimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the
asset, In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into accouttt,

The Company bases its Impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady ot declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

For assets an assesstrent is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the assel’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the ast impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

m, Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of?

s A present obligation ariging from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation '
A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliabie estimate is possible
A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.
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Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the sxpected benefits to be deliversd by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract, The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established the Company recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

n. Contingent assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is
virtuafly certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date. A contingent assét is disclosed where an inflow of
ecoriomic benefits is probable.

0. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit scheme. DIAL contributes its portion of
contribution to DIAL Employees Provident Fund Trust (‘the Trust’}, DIAL has an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the not1ﬁed interest rate which is
determined by actuary and accounted by the DIAL as provident fund cost.

Retirement benefit in the form of Superatnuation Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined contribution
schemes and the coniributions ate charged to the standalone statement of profit and foss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the respective trusts.

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the standalone
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized es a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the conttibution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will {ead to a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund,

Gratuity Liability is a defined benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance
Corporation of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Every employee who
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on separation at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn
basic salary} for each completed year of service.

The Company treats accumulated leave including sick leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences
including sick leave are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the year-end, Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the standalone statement of profit and loss and |

are not deferred. -




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Prlvate Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006P1LC146936
Nofes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three bread categories:

a) Financial assets at amortised cost
b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cosi: A ‘Financial asset’ is measured af the amortised cost if beth the following
conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurentent, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount er premivm on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amottisation is included in other income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impatrment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 12,

Financial assets at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any Financial asset, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as at Fair Value through OCI (FVTOCI), is

classified as at EVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a Financial assets, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI critetia, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition incomsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Financial assefs included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, whete applicable, a part of a financizl asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset. -
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Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined berefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, Past service costs are recognised in

profit or loss on the earlier oft

i} The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date that the Company recognises related resiructuring costs.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement
of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settiemants; and
¢ Net interest expense or incotme

p. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity,

1) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income {OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business mode] for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a signiftcant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (f) Revenue from

contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows W111 result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be

required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognitior: of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables
or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from alf possible defauit events over the expected life of a

financial instrument. The 12-month BCL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

coniractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment ioss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every teporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are anaiysed.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credii risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

II) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classifled, at initial recognition, as financiaf liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate. . ‘
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include frade and other payables, loans and borrowings including and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to standalone statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through

profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or'loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral patt of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the standalone statement

of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantiaily di fferent terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
" derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in respective carrying
amounts is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an intention to seftle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.




Delhi International Aifport Limited (formerly krown as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. Us3033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

(. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial Recognitioﬁ and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as call spread options, to hedge its foreign currency
risks.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets
when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

a} Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment;

b) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
. particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in en unrecognised firm commitment;

¢) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging / economic relationship, the hedged itern or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s
fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributabie to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. :

Cash flow hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as described betow:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCT in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale ocours,

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no tonger meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

E
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Presentation of derivative contracts in the financial statement

Derivative assets and liabilities recognized on the balance sheet are presented as current and non-current based
on the classification of the underlying hedged item.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s

cash management.
s. Foreign currencies

Funectional Currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and Translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition, However, for practical reasons, the Compary
uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, Nen-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

t. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measursment date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place sither:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, mazimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited}

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1| — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcment
is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilitles that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurerment as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External valuers are involved for valuation of
significant assets or liabilities such as derivative instruments.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the

hasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hieratchy as
explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosurss

are given in the relevant notes as mentioned below.

a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)
b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 37)
¢} Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

u. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of

payment and excluding taxes or dufies collected on behalf of the government.

Reverue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it
typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial siatements for the vear ended March 31,2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Revenue from Operations

Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind
AS 1185, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised
service to the customer and when the customer pays for that service will be one year or less.

The Company also receives long-term advances from customers for rendering services. The transaction price for
such contracts are discounted, using the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Company and its customers at contract inception, to take into consideration the significant financing

component.
Contract balances

Contract assefs

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer {which consist
of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is

conditional.
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right o an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., ontly the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Conitract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation fo transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment s due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract.

Income from services

Revenue from airport operations i.e. Aeronautical and Non Aeronautical operations are recognised on accrual
basis, net of service tax/Goods and Service Tax (GST), and applicable discounts when services are rendered.
Aetonautical operations include user development fees (UDF), Passenger Service Fee {Facilitation Component)
[PSF (FC)], Baggage X-ray Charges, Landing and Parking of aircraft, fuel farm and CUTE counter charges. The
main streams of non —aercnautical revenue includes duty free, retail, advertisement, food & beverages, cargo,
ground handling, car parking and land & space- rentals.

Land & Space- rentals pertains to granting right to use Jand and space primarily for catering to the need of
passengers, air traffic services and air transport services, ' '

Revenue from commercial property development rights granted to concessionaires is recognized on accrual
basis, as per the terms of the agreement entered into with the customers.
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Dethi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN, U63033DL2006PLC146936 .
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable except the interest income received from customers for delayed payments which is accounted on the
basis of reasonable certainty / realisation.

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income 1s recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriste, to the gross carrying amouat of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, which is generally
when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Claims

Claims on contractors / concessionzires are accounted on the basis of reasonable certainty / realization.

v, Taxes

Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax assets and iiabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate,
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i When the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwili or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not 2 husiness combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or foss.
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Alrport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2096PLC146936
Notes to the standalene financial statements for the year ended March 31, 201 9

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probzble that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax assct relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foresesable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The cafrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that ftis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivety

enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or foss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tex items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists fo set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) paid in a year is charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss as
current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. [n the year in which the Company recognises MAT credit as an
asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on ‘Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax® under IT Act, the said asset is created by way of credit to the standalone statement of profit and
loss and shown as ‘MATT credit entitlement’. The Company reviews the ‘MAT credit entitfement’ asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it
will pay normal tax during the specified period.




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN, U63933DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Taxes, cess, duties such as sales tax/ value added tax/ service tax/goods and service tax etc. paid on
acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses - :

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of taxes paid, except:

» When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets, goods or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable

o When receivebles and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables

or payables in the balance sheet.

w, Operating segments

The Company has only one reportable operating segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied services.
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the standalone financial staternents relate to the Company’s single opetating

segment.

x. Proposed dividend

As per Ind AS 10, “Events after the Reporting period’, the Company disclose the dividend proposed by board
of directors after the balance sheet date in the notes to these standalone financial statements. The liability to pay
dividend is recognised when the declaration of dividend is approved by the shareholders.

y. Earnings per share

Basic eernings per share is caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
all dilutive potential equity shares.

z. Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure
The Company charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the standalone statement of profit and loss.

aa, Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from

operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Delhi Internattonal Afrport Limited {formerly lmown as Dethi fnternational Airport Private Limlited}
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

Notes ta the séandalone finaneial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31,2019

(All amounis in Rupees crore, excepl wtherwlse stated)

5 Intangible assets

Airport Computer

concesslonaire rights software Total
Gross block (nt cost) - .
As at March 31,2017 490.52 41,16 331.68
Additions - 0358 0.58
As at March 31, 2018 490,52 41,74 332,26
Additions - 0.75 .75
As at March 31, 2019 490.52 42,49 £33.01
Amortisation
As at March 31, 2017 88.75 38.86 127,61
Charge for the year 8.20 1,18 933
As gt Mareh 31, 2018 96.95 40.01 136.96
Charge for the year 8.20 036 3,76
Ag at March 31,2019 105,15 40.57 143,72
Net Block
As at March 31, 2018 393.57 1.73 395.30
As at March 31, 2019 355,37 1.92 387.29

(This spece has bean infentionaily left blonk)




Diethi Inéernational Alrport Limited (formerly known as Defhi Internationnl Alrpert Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes {o the standylone flunncial statements for the year anded March 31,2019

(Al amannts in Rupees crore, excent othorwise stuted)

6.1 Investment in subsidiary, associntes and Jolnt véntires

Nan current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

Investments carried at cost
Unquoted aquity shares fully paid up

Investmont in subsidiary

Dethi Aerctrorolis Privale Limited
100,000 shares of Rs 10 each (March 31, 2018 ; 100,000 shares of Rs 10 each) 918 0.10

Investmert in associates
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management [ndia Private Limited 29,12 29,12

29,120,000 shases of Rs. 10 ench (March 31, 2018 : 28,120,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
Delli Duty Bree Services Private Limited 39,92 39.92
32,920,000 shares of Rs. 10 each {(March 31, 2018 ; 38,920,000 shares of Rs, 10 sach)

40.64 40.64

Delhi Airport Parking Servicas Private Limited
40,638,560 shares of Ra 10 esch (March 31, 2018:40,638,560 shares of Rs 10 each)

Travel Food Services (Dslhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 5.60 5,60
5,600,000 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2018 : 5,600,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)

TIM Delhi Alrport Advertising Private Limited 9.22 922
9,222,503 shares of Rs. [0 each (March 31, 2018 : 9,222,505 shares of Rs, 10 each)
DIG] Yatra Foundation 0.00 -
370 sharas of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2018 : Nil)
Investment in [oint ventures
Delhi Aviation Services Privaie Limited . 12.50 12.50
12,500,000 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2018 : 12,500,000 shaces of Rs. 10 each)
Deihi Aviation Fuetl Facility Private Limited 42,64 42.64
42,640,000 sharas of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2018 : 42,640,000 shares of Rs, 10 each)
WAISL Limited (formerly known as Wipro Airport 1T Servies Limited)* 1,30 1.30
1,300,000 shares of Rs. 10 each (Mareh 31, 2018 : 1,300,000 shares of Rs. 10 each)
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 108,33 108.33
108,334,241 shares of Rs. 10 each (March 33, 2018 - 108,334,241 share of Bs, 10 each)
289.37 289,37

Aggregate book value of nnguated non-eurrant investinert 289.37 289.37
6.2 Investments
Carvied at fakr value throush profit and loss
Fast Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limiled
7,839 shares of s 10 each { March 31, 2018 :7.839 shares of Rs 10 each) 0.01 0.01

' 0.01 201

* The Company is proposing to sale its entire investment in WAISL Limited {formerly known as Wipro Airport IT Servies Limited} of Rs 1.30 ot (1,300,000 shares of Rs, 10 each) to Antariksh

Sofitech Private Limited based on valuation of independen valuer,

(This space hay been infentionally Iefl blank)




Delhl Tnternational Airport Limited (farmerly known as Delhi [nternational Airport Private Limited)

CIN. UB3033DL2006PLC146036
Notes to the standalone financial statement(s for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

(AN amounts in Rupees crors, excent othexwise stated)

6.3 Current Investmeants

Curvent
Mareh 31,2019 March 31, 2018

[nvestments carried at air value through profit or loss
Investment in matual fund

Unawoted investments
ICICE Prudential Liguid Regular Plan Growth 232,38 285,37

18,437,391.38 units fMarch 31, 2018 1 11,130,257.38) of Ra. 100 each]
Bank of Baroda Mutual Fund 50,06 3510
[2,34,043.88 unit (March 31, 2018 : 176.460.73) of Ra. 1000 eachf
Axis Liguid Fond Growth 04.62 175,42
74,58,166,66 units (March 31, 2018 : 913,307.88) of Rs. 1000 each]
Birla Sunlife Cash Plus- nst.- Growth - 517,92
[Ni} ¢ March 31, 2018 : 16,757,830.39 ) of Rs. 100 each]

- 23.03

IDFC Cash Fund Growth Repular Plan
Mil (March 31, 2018 : 354,752, 88) of Rs. 1600 each]

DHFL Mutual Fund - 130.31
NIl ¢(March 31, 2018 ; 5,580,746.71) of Rs. 100 each]
Inveseo Mutual Pund

[Nil (Margh 3£, 2018 . 630,626.71} of Rs. 1000 each]

Kotak Liguid Scheme 78.06 145,42
[1,98.960.52 units {Maceh 31, 2018 : 413,959.05} of Rs, 1000 each]
Reliance Mutual Fund .

INil (March 31, 2018 : 7,593,237.26) of Rs. 1000 each]

Sunderam Meney Fund Repular —~ Growth 75,09 173,37
{1,91,42,370,75 unita (March 31, 2018 : 48,055,8356.01} of Rs, 10 each]

- 150.32

- 77.04

DSP Mutual Fund - 230,53
il (March 31, 2018 : $31,807.72) of Rs. 1000 cach)
LIC Nemura Liquid Fund - 90.20
[Ni! (March 31, 2018 : 287,635.12) of Rs, 1000 eacht ’
IDBI Mutusl Fund - 90,16
NIl {March 31, 2018 ; 487,216.23) of Rs. 1000 ench]
UTI- Lituid Pund-Cash Plan-INST Growth 167,91 -
[5,50,344.26 units (March 31, 2015: Nil} of Rs. 1000 each]
Tata Liquid Fund Plan A - Growth 100.08 ~
13.41,515.63 units (March 31, 2018 : Nil } of Rs. 1000 each |
Investments earried at amortised cost
Investment in Commerclal Papers
SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited . 242,82 378.27
15,000 (March 31, 2018 : 8,000) Units of Rs, 5,00,000 each]
SRFEI Equipment Finance Limited 167.53 -
13,500 (Mareh 31, 2018 : Nil} Units of Rs. 5.00.000 sachl
Piramal Enterpreises 49,61 -
11,000 {March 31, 2018 ; Mil} Units of Rs. 5,080,000 each]
IM Financial Products Limited 200.25 -
[4,400 {March A1, 2018 : Nil} Units of Rs, 5,00,600 sach]
) L3841 2,584,95
145541 2,584.46

Aggregate book value of nnquoted invesiments

(This space hay heer tntentionally left biasd)




Delhi [nternational Airpert Limited (formerly known as Delbi International Airport Private Limited}

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Nates to the standalone financial stat i3 {or the year anded March 31,2019

(Al mmounts in Rupees erove, excepl oflierwise stated)

7, Loans

Unsecured, cumidércd good

Carried at amortised cost
Security deposits
Unseocured, considared zood

Inter corporate loai
Unsecurad, considered good 10 related partics [refer note 34(b;)

(&)
Advaznces
Doubtful, o related parties [refor note 34(b)]
Lass: provision for doubtful advanses frefer note 34(b)]

(B)

Total (A+B)

8. Other Finaocial assels

Darivative Instrument carvied at fie value throngh OCT #
Cash flow hedge- Call spread aptien

Carvied at amortlsed cost

Tntersst acerued on fixed depasits and others

Non-trade receivable [refer note 40(b))

[net of provision of doubtfl:l debts Rs 0.85 crores (March 31, 2013 Rs, 0.46 crores)j
Unbilled recaivables (Mareh 31, 2018 Unbilled revenus)
Other recovarables from related parties [refsr note 34(b)]
Margin monsy deposit * (refer note 13) )
Other receivable .

Total other {inancial assets

) Non carrent Curront
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1.89 2.46 125 1.58
- . 400,00 -
1.89 246 401,35 .38
.82 282 - -
(2.82) (2,82) - .
1,89 246 401.1?1_§ 1,58
Nen current Current -
March 31, 2001¢  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
194,63 0.97 - -
- . 33.19 15.18
134.37 - 42,17 47.39
- - 164.73 9.1
- - 19.52 17.65
0.24 0.23 . .
- - 7L 29.83
320,34 1.20 330,65 123,16

#Financial assets at fair valua reflzct the change in fair valus of cail spread options, designated s cash flow hedges 10 hedge the futurz cash outflow in USD on settlement of foreign exchange
borrewings of USD 811.35 miilion (Rs, $,610.89 crore) [March 31, 2018: USD 811,38 million (Ra. §,301.36 crore)] on senior secured foreign cuttency notes.

* Rg 0.24 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 0.23 crore) against License fee to South Delhi Municipal Corporatian,

9, Other assets

Capital advances

Advances other than capital advance
Advance to suppliers
Qther advances
Less: provigion for doubtul advances

Others
Prepaid expenses
Dieposit with government autharities {noluding paid under protest [refsr note 33 11 (e)]

Ralance with statutory / government autharities
Gratuity fund balance (net) [refer note 32(b)]

Total other nssets (A-+B+C)

(A}

(B

©

Mo reut Carrent
Wareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018 Mavch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
944,50 4.60 “ -
944,50 4,60 - -
. - 17.04 1502
" - 0.03 0.03
- - {0.08) {0.03}
- - 17,04 1502
5.9% 5.83 639 4.52
- - 4,69 4.07
- - 814 14.57
- - 1.96 -
3,99 5.83 20.6¢ 25,16
950,49 1043 37.64 40.13

(This space has been Intendonatly {uft blarnk)




Delhi Internatlonal Alrport Limited (formerly knvwa as Delbi [nternational Airport Private Lisvited)
CIN. [63033DL2006PLCI46936

Notes (o the standalone financial statements for the year endcd March 31, 2019

(Amowmnt in Rupees crore, uniess otherwlse stated)

10, Income tax

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Cmvent incorne tax:
Adiustment of tax relating to eartier years - (4.88)
Deforred tax:
Relating to arigination and reversal of temporary differences . 115.10) (73.57)
Incame tax expense reporicd In ihe statement of profit or loss (115,100 {78.83)
QCI Section
Defarred rax related to items recognised in OC duddng in tha year: Mareh 31, 2069 March 31, 2018
Re-mersurement gning (losses) on defined benefit plans Q.10 027
Cnsh flow Hedpe Regerve . 3.36 {6.53)

: 5.46 (6.80)

[ueome éax charged fo OCL

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multlplied by India’s domestic tax rate for Mareh 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:
Mapch 31,2019 March 3],2018
Accounting profit before tax {226,87) {40.60)
Tax at the applicable tax rote of 34,94% (March 31, 2018; 34,94%) (79.27) {14.19)
Exempl income not included in caleulation of tax (22.22) (23.68)
Assols capitalised in the Income Ter Act in surrent year tut in: the books in - (22.13)
previous vear
Tax on depresiation cherged to opening reteined earnings (8.08) -
Impact of incrarment in tax rate ’ - 098
Other adjustments . 126 520
Tax on Ind AS 115 trensition impact adfustment in opening retained earnings {(Z.71) -
Tax effect of items on which deferred taxes has not heen accounted (7.94) {1327
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years - {(4.58)
Previously unrecognised tax losses used fo reduce deffered tax exoense - (L1.24)
Tax effeot of expen: aat are nof deductible in determining taxab :
Donaticn paid disallowed . 3.86 4.74
Tnterest on delayed payment of Income Tax (0.01) (0.38)
At the effective income tax rate of 50.74% (March 31, 2018: 48%) (1E5.10) {18.85)
Tolal tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (115.10) {78.85)
Dafarved tax:
Balance sheet Statement of profit or lnss
Aareh 31, 2019 _March 31, 2018 X 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred tax Uability
Accelerated doprecigtion for tax purposes {925,05) (972,74} 47.68 42.63
Derivative liakility-mark to market loss on IRS - - - 4.96
On account of upfront fees being amortized using EIR method (16.16) (18.26) 210 2.68
Fair value of investrhent in mutual fund (¢.37) (11,71) 1134 827
Cash Flow Hedge _(B0.33) (0,71} (83,11} 7%
{1,021.81) N _{1,603.41) {23.99) 4129
Deferred tax asset
Unabsarbed depresiation 818.45 649,27 169.18 51,52
Others Disallowances 13.05 36.16 23.11) 8.21
Unrealised forex oss on berrowings - 10,06 (10.06) (7.20%
Intangibles (Airport Concession rights) 62.79 &6.71 (3.92} (3.25)
Advance from customer 1.87 - (0.81) .
Nen Trade Receivable Deferment 10.91 - 12,91 -
Cther borrowing cost to the extent not amortiged 13.24 16.34 3.10) (2.92)
Marketing Pund Liablity .t - - {13.68)
20,51 778.54 139,09 3268
Net deferrad tax assefs/( linbilities) 104,60 204.87) 115,10} j (73.91
Reconciliations of net deferred tax iabliiles / (assets)
Myrch 31, 2019 - March 31,2018
Opening balarce as at beginning of the year 224,87 29204
Tax expense during the pericd rocognised in profit or loss (11510 (73.97)
Tax axpense during the period recognised in opening reserves [refer note 3(a)] {2.71) -
Tax (exnensel incoms during the period recognised in OCL {5,46) 580
19160 22487

Closing balance

The Company offsets fax aysets and liabilities if and only if it has a 1egaliy enforesuble right to sel off current tax assets and current tax liabilitios and the deferred tax assats and deferred tax
liabilities relate to inoame taxes levied by the same tax aothority.

i
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Delhi [nternational Airport L.iﬁllted {Topmerly Lnown as Delhi Internatienal Airporr Private Limited)
CIN. U63033DL2006PLCL46936 .
Notes to the standalone financlal statemants for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees crore, except otherwise stated) -

11, Inventories
(valued at Jowor of cost or net reallzable value) Mareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Storas and spares 1,33 4,39
7,33 639
L2, Trade receivables Cyreent
Marck 31, 2019 BMarch 31,2018
Trade recelvables
Related parties [refor note 14{b)} . 1890 - 106.28
Others rafer note 40(5)] . ’ 98,31 418.85
117,71 325,13
Brealt up for seeurlty details:
Trade raceivables
Sscured, considered good™*™ 19.47 220,32
Unseeured, considered good [tefer note 40(b)] 58,24 304.81
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 3.01 3.23
120.72 528.36
Impairment Allawance (allowance for eredit loss)
Less: Unseeured, consldered good ) (3.01) (32
- : . 117.7% 52513
+4 Trade recelvable to the extent covered by seourlty depostts or bank guarantees are considered es Secured trade raceivables.
Trade receivables includes:- .
Corrent
March 31, 2019 Match 31, 2018
Dues fron catities in which the Com pany's nan-executive director is a director
Delhi Duty Free Services Privae Limited - 16,37
GMR Warora Enorgy Limited 231 -
GMR Infrastructure Limiced 0.74 036
GMR Aviation Private Limited 0.02 002
GME Bajoli Holi Hydrogower Private Limited 248 0.50
GMR Airports Limited .20 -
(MR Kamalanga Bnergy Limiled . 1.95 -
TIM Dolhi Alrpert Advarising Private Limited .67 10.3¢7
WAISL Limited 5.74 3735
13, Cash and Cash Eguivalents Non-current Carrent
: Maych 31,2019 Marehi 31 2018 March 31, 3019 March 31, 2018
Balances with Banks .
=On cutrent accountsé - . 26,08 11091
-Deposits with original matrity of less than three months* - . 200.00 263.56
Cheques / drafts on hand - - 0,22 043
Cash on hand . - 0.04 0.02
(4) B - 226,34 374.57
Other bank balaiwces
~ Margin meney daposit* ' .24 (.23 - -
B) 0.24 093 f N
Amount dizelosed under other non-current financial assots (refer uots 8) (0,34) (0.23) - -
Total (A+B) - - 22634 374.97

# Cash and cash equivalents includes balance on current acoount with banks for Rs. 0.6 crore (Mavch 31, 2018: Rs 1.23 orore} in respect of Marketing Fund,
*DJeposit with banks sarns interest a1 floating rates bascd on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for'varying periods of between one day and three months, depending oo the

immediate cash réquirements of the Company, and eam interest at the iespectivs short-term deposit rates.

AtMarel 31, 2019, the Company has available Rs. 230,71 crore (Warch 31, 2018: Rs. 225.81 arorg) of undrawn berrowing facilities for fara operating activities,

14, Baek balances other than cash and cash squivalents

March 31, 2419 March 31, 2018
Balances with banks:
— Doposits with original maturity of more than thras months but less than 12 months# 398.94 91.27
358.94 91.27
# Deposits with bank includes Rs. 57.73 crore (March 31, 2018; Rs, 49,32 arere) in respect of Marksting Fund. -
Break up of financials assets carvied at antortised cost and at fair value through profit and loss
Nost current Current
March 31,3019 Margh 31, 2018 —Mareh 31,2319 March 31,2013

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Investment in commenclal papers (refer note 5.3) .- T 660,21 37827
Trade Receivable {refer note 12) - - 11771 525.13
Cash end cash equivalents (vefer aote 13) - - 226,34 174.97
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents {refer note [4) - - 398.94 oL27
Loanas (refer noie 7) 1.89 246 401.35 .58
Other financial wssets (refer note 8) 32924 1.20 336.65 123.16

(A} 33103 386 2,135.20 1,494, 38
Tinancial assets carried at Fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mulual funds {refer note 6.3) - - 795,20 2,206,19
Investrents in Equity Shares (refer note 6.2} (.01 .01 - -

B) 0,01 .01 795,20 2,206,19
Tatal financinl assels (&+8) 330,14 367 2.930,40 3,700,357




Dedhii intarnationai Airport Limited {formerly kuown as Delhi International Alvport Private Limited)
CEN, Us3033DL2005PLC146936

Notes to the standalone financial statemenis for the year eaded March 31, 2019

(All amounts i Rupees crore, excapt atherwise stated)

15, Equity Share Capital

March 31, 2012 March 21, 2018
Anthorised shares (No. in crores)
300 (Mareh 31, 2018: 300} equity shares of Rs, 10 each 3,000 3,000
_3.000 3,000
Issued, subsctibad and flly paid-ugp shares (Mo, in crores)
245 (March 31, 2018: 245) equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 2,450 2,450
3,450 2430
a. Recanciliation of Shares Qutstanding at the begfuning and end of the reporting yenr
Equity Shares March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
No. ingrore _ {Rs. in crores Mo, in erorg (Rs,_in crares)
At the beginning of the year 245 2,450.08 245 2,450.00
Issued during the year - - - - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 245 2,430.00 - 243 2.450.00

I Terms/Rights Attached to equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per ghare, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per shae. The dividend propesed by

the Board of Directors is subjset to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be sntitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholdets, Further the sharsholders have entered into share lolders agreement
whereby specinl rights have been assigned lo the Alrports Authority of India (AAD) in respect of appeintment of the nominee director in the Board of Direotors, approval of
reserved Sharcholders and Board matters by affirmative vote of the AAL  Further in case any shareholder intends Lo the transfer its shares subject to restriction of leek in period
in Operation, Management and Development Agreemen: between shareholders, other shareholders will have first right of refusal in acsordance with the terms of the sharehalders

nnraawant

¢ Shares held by bolding/ intermediate holding compasy and lta subsidiary
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, intermediate holding company and its subsidiary are as below:

Name of Shareholder March 31, 2019 Maich 31, 2018
GMR Tulrastructure Limited, the intermediate holding compazy

100 (March 31, 2018 109) equity share of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 0,00 0.00
GMR Energy Limited, Subsidiacy of the intermediate holding company
100 (Mareh 31, 2018: 100) equity share of Rs, 10 each {ully paid up 0,00 0.00
GMR Airports Limited along with My, Srinlyas Dommidala 0.00 0.00
! (March 31, 2018: 1) squity shero of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
GMR Airports Limited along with Mr Grandhi Kivan Kumar 0,00 0.00
| {March 31, 2018; 13 equity share of Rs.10 sack fally paid up
GMR Abrporis Eimited, the holding company
156.80 orars (March 31, 2018: 156,80 erore) equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 1,568 1,568
d. Detnils of Skareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company
March 31, 201% March 31, 2018
—— TRE Y
Numbers % Holding in Numbers % Hoelding in the
the ¢lass class

Eauily shares of Rs. 10 oach uly paid
Alrporis Authority of India 637,000,000 26% 637,406,000 26%
GMR Alrports Limited ., 1,567,999,798 4% 1,567,999,798 64%
Frapart AG Frankfust Airport Services Worldwide 245,000,000 10% 245 400,000 10%

2.449,999,708 100% 2.449 986,798 100%

& As par records of the Company ineluding its register of sharehalders/ membars and other declarations received from sharsholders regarding beneficial interest, the sbove share

holding represents legal and benefictal ownership of shares as at the balanca sheet date.
| Sonary D
iong -
{-'L @g't'\ af X

This space fas heen lntentionally lff blonk)




Delhi Inlernational Airport Lintited (fermorly lmown as Dathi Internationat Airport Privata Limited)
CIN, Us303IDL2006PLC146936
Notas to the stundalone financial statements for the year ended Maveh 31, 2019

{All amounts in Rupees erore, excent oiherwise statec)

16. Other Equity
March 31, 20£9 March 31, 2018
Retained earnings .
Balance g3 par last financial statements 422.87 57549
Effect of adoption of new accouting standard [refer note 3(8)] ’ (5.02) -
Depreciation chargs to reserve [refer note 3(e)] (23.12) "
(Loss) / Profit for the year (111,77} 38,25
Re~messuretnent gains on defined banefit plans (0.18) 0.50
Payment of dividends - (159.25)
Dividend distribution tax - (32.42)
Closing balanes ! 282.48 422,57
Other items of Comprehensive Income
Cash flow hedge reserve
Balance as per last financial statements (4.49) (16.84)
Net Movement dutlng the year {9.95) 1233
{14.4d) @49
268,04 ) 418.08
16.1 Distribution made and proposed on Equity sharas:
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
C'ash dividends on oquity shares declaved and paid
Final dividend on equity shares for tha year ended on March 31, 2018: Rs. 0.65 per share® - 159.25
- 3242

Dividend distribution tax (DDT) on final dividend
. ‘ : 18157

*Proposed dividends on equity shares was subject 1o approval at the annual general meeting and was not recognised es & fiability (including DDT thereon) as at March 31, 2017,

This was subsequently approved in annug] general meeting held on Septembar 5, 2017,

16,2 Net dividend remitted in loreign exchrnge:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Year of remittance (ended on)
) . April |, 2016t
hich j ,
Period to which relates Weacch 31, 2017
Number of non-resident sharsholders - 1.00
- 245,000,060.00

Number of squity shares of neminal vaiue Rs. 10 per shars heid on which dividend was due
Amount remitied in USD (in million)
Amounl remitied fn INR {in crore)

- 0.23

(This space ks boen intentionaily tefl blank)




Delhi International Airport Limited (formeriy known as Dethi Interuational Airport Private Limited)
CIN. B63033DL2006PLL1469346
Notes to the standalone Anancinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2012

(All amounts fn Rupees cuore, except ofherwise stated)

17, Borrowings
Non - Current

March 31, 2019 Margh 31, 2018

Bonds
6.125% (2022) senior secured foreign currency notes (Notg-1)* 1,973.25 1,857.92
6.125% (2026} senior secured foreign currency notes {Nots-2)*+ 3,591.40 3,391.19
7 5,564.65 5,249.12

# 6,125% Seiior Secured Foreign Currency Notes (Note-1) of USL 285,34 million (March 31, 2018: USD 284.35 millien), principal outstanding of USD 288,73 millioa (March
11, 2018; USD 288.75 million) from International capital markst carrying a fixed interest rate of 6,125% p.2. plus applicable withholding tax. The Note-1 are due for repayment
in February, 2022, The bends are sscured by first rank pari-passu charge on all the future revenues, raceivables, Trust and Retention account, any other reserve, other bank
accounts and insurance proceeds of the Company and all the rights, titles, interests, permits in respect of the project documents a3 detailed in the lenders agreemants, to the
extent permissibla under QMDA

#4 6,125% Senior Secured Foreign Currency Notes (Nota-2) of USD $19.33 million (March 31, 2018: USD 319.00 million), principat outstanding of USD $22.60 million (March
31, 2018: USD 522,60 million) from International capital market carrying & fixed interest rate of 6.125% p.a. plus appiicable withholding tax, The Note-2 are due for repayment
in October 2026. The loan is secured by first rank pari-passu charge on ail the future revenues, receivables, Trust and Retention account, any other reserve, other bank accounts
and insurance procesds of the Company and all the rights, titles, interests, permits in respect of the praject documents as detailed in the lenders agreements, to the extent
permissible under OMDA, :

<. With respect to Note| and Note-2 above, the Company has to follow Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio as provided under the Indenture for any additional indebtedness and other
limitations, The Company has complied with the financial covenanis prescribed Tn the financing documents aad the Indanture. .

1. Other Finangial Linbilities

Non Current Current
March 31, 2019 Marely 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Othor financial Habilities at muortised cost
Security Depesits from iade concessionaires frefer note 34(b)] 320,15 310.78 214.27 * 15024
Security Daposits from commercial preperty developers 13,02 748 - 11675
Earnest money deposits - - 4,59 251
Capital Creditors - - 23.32 23.63
Retention monay 4,34 3.41 28.42 25,26
Liability for Voluntary ratitement scheme . - 135 1.33 15,47
Interest accrued but not due on borrawings - 113,98 105.33
Employee benofit expensas payable - - 2.01 3,69
Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost 337.51 323.02 388,34 442 88,
Tofal other financin! liahilities 337.51 333.02. 38834 442,88
19. Deferved Revenue
Non Cerrent Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 11, 2018
Deferred incoma an financial labilitiss carried at amortized cost 1,897,589 1,575.76 54.83 74,27
(refer note a below}
Unearned revenue (refer note b below) kK | 147 16.31 11.67
1,201,00 1,577.23 164,14 85.94
Deferred income on financial Linbilities carried at amordized cost
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
At April 1 1,650.03 1,855,568
Deferred during theyear 422.89 35,84
Reversed during the year (11.07) {163,15)
Releascd to the statement of profit and loss {79.43) (19.21)
1,982.42 1,650.03
Unearned revenus :
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
At April 1 13.14 11,93
Deferred during the year 183.1% 277.93
Relsased 1o the statement of profit and logs (276.61) (276.72),
19.72 13,14

Note:
5 Interost free seourity deposit received from conoesstonaire and commercial property developers (that ars refundable in cash o, completion of its term) are carried at

amortised cost. Difference between the amortised valus and transaction value of tha security deposits received has boen recognised as deferred revenue.
b. Uneatnied raveane as al March 31, 2019 represents 'contract fibilitiss' due to adontion of modifted retrospective approach of transition in accerdance with Ind AS 115.

=
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Delhl Infernational Airport Limited {formerly known as Delhi Tnternationsl Airport Private Limited)
CIN. Ug30330L.2006PLC146936

Notes to the standalene financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2013

{All amounts in Rupess crore, except oiberwise sinted) )

20 Other Liabilities Mon Corrent Current
March 31, 2019 March 31, 3018 Marcil 31_, e Mearch 31, 2018

Advances (fom commercial property developers [refer note 40(g)] 56,29 92.72 44,86 48.15
Advance from customer 10.81 2.85 18.08 6.16
Marketing fund labiiity [refer note 40 (h)] ) - - 57.22 51,51
Tax deducted at source/Tax Collected at source payable - - 14,83 1520
Goods & Service tax pavable - - 33.18 1.72
Other statutory duss - - 2.03 1,668
Other ligbilities - - 28,02 18.99

61,10 102.57 198,21 14339

Note:

1. Advances from commercial property developers and Advances from customers as at March 31, 2019 represenis ‘contract liabilitles' due (o adoption of modified
retrospective approach of transition in accordance with Ind AS 115. .

2. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosad the remaining parformance obligation related disclosures for contracts whers the
tevemie recogaized corresponds directly with the valuo ta the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, fypioally those contraats where Invoicing is on {ime and

material basis,
3, Contract liabilitis include transaction price, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned abiove, relatod to performance obligatien to bo satisfied within ane
year for Rs. 44,86 crores and after ene year for Rs, 50.29 crores.

21 Trade payables :
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
Total outstanding dues of micro snterprives and smali enterprises 5.19 7.35
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Related parties [refer nate 34(b)] 83.15 204.58
- Others 213.53 212.02
01,87 423.95

Disclosure as per Section 22 of “The Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Developmeni Act, 2606,
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

The principal amount and the intarest due therecn remaining unpaid to any supplisr:

- Principal amount 519 7.35

- Interest therson . -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer {n terms of section 18, along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplior beyond the appointed day.
The arraunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have beer paid but beyond the apppinted day during the year} bul without
adding the inferest specified under this Act - -
The amount of interest acorued and remaining unpaid - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, unti! such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
investor - -
Terms and conditions of the abeve financial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest beaving and ave noreally setlied on 60-day terms.

Related parties payable ars payable on damand ence they gat due.

For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 38,

22 Provisions
Long tera Shoxt term
areh 31, 2060 Margh 31,2018 Aarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benelits
Provision for feave benetits - - 258.61 2118
Provision for Gratuity [refer note 32(b}] . 1.43 . -
Provision for superannuation - - 0,39 0.33
Others - - 19.13 1213
- : 1.45 43,13 40264
Break up of financial Habilitles
: Non Current Carrent
March 31, 2019 March 31, 20 reh 31, 2019 March 31, 201
Financial linbility carvied at amortised cosé
Borvowings (refer note 17) 5.564.65 5,249.12 - -
Trade Payables {refer note 21) . - - 301,87 412.01
Other finanoial liabilities (refer hote 18} 33,51 . 323,02 388.34 442.88
590216 5372,14 590,21 85489
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Notes to the standalene financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts iy Rupees crove, except otherwise stafed)

23, Revenue From Operations

Mareh 31, 209 March 31, 2018
Revenue from contract with customers
Aeronautical {A) 987.80 1,705.48
Non ~ Aeronautical
Duty free 463.12 378.42
Retail 163,77 133.30
Advertisement 162.74 170.98
Food & Beverages 153,39 134,66
Carga 241,78 208,09
Ground Handling 131.55 124.40
Parking 31.08 25.89
Land & Space — Rentals 379.82 349.33
Others 361.69 274,84
Total Non «Aeronautical (B) 2,090.91 1,798.81
Other operating revenuc
Revenue from commercial property devalopment (C) 183.%4 176.68
TOTAL (A+B~+C) 3.262,65 3.680.97
Note:
(i) The Company sams jts sntirs revenue from aperations in India,
(i) Timing of rendering of servives March 31, 2019
Aeronautical Neon-Aeronantical Others Total
Services rendered at a point in time 766,18 - n 766.18
Services rendered over time 221,62 2,00091 183.94 2,496.47
Total revenue from contracts with customers 987.88 2.090.91 183.94 3.262.65

(iii} Recongillation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted prics:
Particulars

Revenue as per contravied price
Adijustments;

- Significant financing compenent
Revenue from contract with customers

(iv) Set out below is the revenue recognised from:

Amounts included in coniract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Performance obligations satisfied in previous vears

Total
24. Other incame

Interest income on financial asset carvied at amortised cost |
Bank deposits and athers
Security deposiis given

Dividend Income on non-current investments carried at cost

Other non-operating income

Gain on sale of fnencial asset carried &t Fair value through profit and Toss
Current investments-Mutual fund

Exchange ditference (net)

Fair value gain on financial {nstruments at fair value through profit and loss®

Income from Duty credit serips Trafer note 40(0)]

Miscellaneous income

* Fair value gain on finangial instrument at fair valus through profit & loss relates to curvent investmant in mutual funds.

(This space has been intentionally left blunk)

T Mareh 31,2019 _

3,257.85

4.80

3,262.63

March 31, 2019
{49.02)

(49.02)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
282,21 50,96
0.35 039
63.59 67.76
125.558 125,03
- 33.26
105 2357
55,11 30.27
213 0.63
530,61 36187
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25, Employec Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and pther funds [refer note 32 (a)]
Grainity expenses [refer note 32 (b))

Staff welfare zxpenses

26, Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on Property, Plent and Equipment {refer note 4)
Amortization of [ntangible assets {refer note 5}

27. Finanee Costs

Interest on barrowings
Call spread option premium
Interest expenses on financial liability carried at amortised cost
Other interest
Other botrowing costs
~Bank charges

28, Other expenses

Utility expenses
Repairs and malntenance
Plant and machinery
Ruildings
IT Svstems
Others
Manpower hite charges
Airport Operator fees
Security related expenses
[nsurance
Consumables
Professional and consultancy ¢xpenses
Travelling and conveyance
Rates and taxes
Rent (including lease rentals)
Advertising and sales promotion
Cormunication costs
Printing and stationery
Directors’ sitting fees
Payment to auditors (refer note A below)
Provision for Bad debts / Bad Debts Written off
Exchenge difference (net)
Corporate cost allecation
Colleotion charges (Net)
Loas on discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
Daonations
CSR expenditure (refer note 3 below)
Expenses of commercial property deveiopment
Miscellaneous expenses

A. Payment to Auditors (Included in other expenses above}

As Auditor
Audit fee
Tax audit fee

Other services
- Other services (ineluding certification fees)
-Reimbursement of expenses

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

167.05 147.11
12.52 10.48
1.88 301
5.03 4.64
186,48 165.24
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
631.06 636,55
8.76 9.33
539,82 64590
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
381.05 346,88
194.86 153.65
48.04 74,41
3.44 1.41
2,50 2.80
629,50 379,15

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

103.35 113.20
113.25 10827
26,71 3235
18,11 35.32
20.89 15.84
134,66 125,97
114,50 171,87
30,73 23,06
5.65 6,63
14,62 12,73
57.02 73,06
2541 17,62
2,07 8.30
8.09 10.57
13.88 11,18
237 2.09
238 1.51
024 027
1.13 1.62
0.17 0.31
98.47 -
9147 83.02
10.39 528
. 0,08
112 242
992 1114
33.18 49.47
569 5.49
972.99 03] 63

March 31, 2012

March 31, 2018

0,68 0.70
0.07 0.07
0.27 0.83
0.1 0.02
1.13 1.62
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CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Naotes to the standalone finaucial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in Rupees crore. except otherwise stated)

B. Details of CSR expenditure:

March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 9.49 11,70
(9) Amonnt spent during the year ended on March 31, 2019; n cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
f)  Construction/acguisition of any asset 1.40 M 1.40
ii} On purposes other than (fyabave 3.52 - 8.52
b) Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2013 In cash Yet to be pald ia cash Tatal
i) Censtruction/acquisition of any asset - ' . -
iiy On purposes other than (i) above 9.32 1.82 11.14
29. Components of OCIL
The disaggregation of changes ta OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below;
During the year ended Mavch 31, 2019 Match 31,2019
{ash Flow Hedge Reserve (net) 194.03
Less: reclassified to statement of profit and loss (209.34)
- !15!3[!
During the year ended March 31,2018 March 31,2013
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (net) 32.70
Less: reclassified to statement of profit and loss (33.82)
30, (Loss) Eavnings Per Share (EPS)
The following reflects the (loss) income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
March 31, 2019 March 35,2018
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company (11177} 38.25
Weighted average aumber of equity shares used for Computing Loss/ Bamning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) 245,00 245,00
245,00 _243.00
(Loss) Barning Per Share (Basic) (Rs) {0.46) o 016
(Loss) Eaming Per Share (Diluted) (Rs) {0.46) ¢.16

Face value per share (Rs)

(This space has been Mfenttonally left blemf)
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

31. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities

affected in future periods.

31.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Cotmpany’s accounting policies, management tas rade the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Discounting rate

The Company has considered incremental borrowing rate of Alrport secior as at tranisition date for measuting

deposits, being Fnancial assets and financial liabilities, at amortised cost till March 31, 2018. From peried
starting from April 01, 2018; management has considered revised incremental borrowing rate of airport sector
for all the deposits given/received post March 31, 2018; and impact has been duly accounted in standalone

financial statements.
Consideration of significant financing component in a contract

The Company sells pouring rights at airport for which contract period is for more than one year, The Company
concluded that there is a significant financing component for those contracts where the customer elects to pay in
advance considering the length of time between the customer’s payment and rendering services, as well as the
prevailing interest rates in the market.

In defermining the interest to be applied io the amount of consideration, the Company concluded that the interest
rate implicit in the contract (i.e., the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the
amount paid in advance) is appropriate because this is commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing sransaction between the entity and its customer at contract inception. -

Non applicability of Service Concession Arrangement (SCA)

DIAL had entered into Operation, Management and Development Agreement (*OMDA’) with Airports
Authority of India (‘AAL), which gives DIAL an exclusive right to operate, maintain, develop, modernize and
manage the Delhi Airport on a reverue sharing modef for an initial term of 30 years, which cat be extended by
another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions pursuant to the provisions of the OMDA. Under
the agreement, AAI has pranted exclusive right and authority to undertake some of the functions of the AAI
being the functions of operation, maintenance, development, design, construction, upgradation, modernization,
finance and management of the Aifrport and to perform services and activities at the airport constituting
« A eronautical Services’ and ‘Non-Aeronautical Services’. For prices, aeronautical services are regulated, while
the regulator has no control over determination of prices for ‘Non-Aeronautical Services. The management of the
Company conducted detailed analysis to determine applicability of Appendix D of Ind A8 115 and conciuded
that the same does not apply to DIAL. Company concession arrangement has significant non-regulated revenues,
which are apparently not ancitlary in nature, as these are important from DIAL, AAT and users/passengers
perspective. Further, the regulated and non-regulated services are substantially interdependent and cannot be
offered in isolation. The airport premise is being used both for providing regulated services {Aeronautical
Services) and for providing non-regulated services (Nomaeronautical Services). Accordingly, the management

has concluded that SCA does not apply in its entirety 10 the Company.
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Annual Fee to AAL

As per the Concession Agreement (OMDA) entered into with AAI in April 2006, the Company is required to
pay to AAJ annual fee (AF) each year at 45.99% on its projected revenue and same shall be payable in twelve
equal monthly instalments (MAF), to be paid in each catendar month, As per Article 1.1 of Chapter I of OMDA,
“Revenue” is defined to mean all pre-tax gross revenue of DIAL with certain specified exclusions.

Management of the Company is of the view that the certain income / credits arising on adoption of Tnd-AS was
not in contemplation of parties in April 2006 when this Concession Agreement was signed / entered. Further,
these income/credits in Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent actual receipts from business operations,
from any external sources and therefore, these incomes/ credits should not be treated as “Revenue” for
calculation of MAF to AAL Accordingly, the Company, basis above and Legal Opinion, has provided the
monthly annual foe to AAI based on Revenue as per the Ind AS financial statements after adjusting such

incomes/credits {refer note 40 (1))

31.2 ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material zdjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices léss incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation
is based on a discounting cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF mode! as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth

rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax [osses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewsad at cach reporting date.
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the

cutrencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary incteases and gratuity increases
are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 32 (b).

Provision for Leave encashment

The present value of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of discount rate, future salary increases, and withdrawal rates. Due to complexities involved in
the valuation and its long term nature, provision for leave encashment is sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Compary,
including legal, contractor and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or
more uncertain fiture events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the

outcome of future events.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as Hequidity
risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See Note 36, 37 and 38 for further disclosures.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32. Retirement and other employee Benefit:-
Employee Benefit:-

a) Defined benefit plans

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has recognised Rs. 12.52 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 10.48
crore) as an expenses and included in Employee benefits expense as under the following defined contribution

plans.

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Employer’s contribution to
Provident and other fund# 8.38 _ 7.02

Superannuation fund* 4.14 346
Total 12.52 10.48

#Net of amount transferred to Capital work-in-progress (‘CWIP’) & CPD Rs. 0.24 Crore (March 31, 2018: Rs,
0.11 Crore)

¥Net of amount transferred to CWIP & CPD Rs. 0.14 Crore (March 31, 2018; Rs, 0,08 Crore).

"The Company makes contribution towatds provident fund which is administered by the trustees, The rules of the
Company's provident fund administered by a trust, require that if the board of the trustees are unable to pay
interest at the rate declared by the government under para 60 of the Empioyees provident fund scheme, 1972 for
the reason that the return on investraent is less for any other reason, then the deficiency shall be made good by
the Company making interest shortfall a defined benefit plan. Accordingly, the Company has obtained actuarial
valuation and based on the below provided assumption there is no cumulative deficiency at the balance sheet
date. Hence, the Hability is restricted towards monthly contributions only.

As per the requirement of Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia,
benefits involving employer established provident funds, which require interest shortfalls to be re-compens ated,
are to be considered as defined benefit plans. Based on the actuarial valuation and on the assumptions provided
below there is no cumulative short-fall which has been provided in the standalone financial statements.

Particulars _ March 31,2019 - March 31,2018
Plan assets at the vear end, at fair vaiue 148.09 : 111.59
148.09 111.59

Present value of benefit obligation &t year end
Net (liability) recognized in the balance sheet -

" (This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of the interest rate guarantee under the
Deterministic Approach:

Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 7.55% | 7.60%
Fund rate 9.30% 9.30%
8.65% for first year and 8.60%

PFO rate thereafter 8.55% for the next one year
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00%

_ Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality (2006-08) (modified)Ult * | Mortality (2006-08) (modified)Ult *

*As published by IRDA and adopted as Standard Mortality Table as recommended by Institute of Actuaries of
India effective April 1, 2013,

{b) Gratuity expense ‘
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation (DBO) which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance
Corporation of India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial veluation on projected unit credit method made at the end of gach financial year. Every employee who
has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn
basic salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summatise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement
of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employse Cost) for the year ended March 31, 2019:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Current Service Cost 2.00 1.51
Past Service Cost - 1.53
Net Interest Cost (0.12) {0.03)
Total ‘ 1.88 3.01

Amount recogrised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2016:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars © March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Actuarial (gain)/loss due tc DBO (0.95) 0.08
experience
Actuarial gain due to DBO financial - : (0.59)
assumptions changes
Actuarial gain arising during period (0.05) (0.51)
Return on plan assets less / (greater) 0.33 (0.26)
than discount rate
Actuarial loss / (gains) recognized in 0.28 (0.77)
OCI '
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Balance Sheet
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Defined benefit obligation (19.18) (16.39)
Fair value of plan assets 21.14 14.94
Benefit asset / (liability) 1.96 (1.45)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

I Particulars March 31, 2019 Mach 31, 2018
Opening defined benefit obligation 16.39 12.78
Interest cost 1.21 0.87
Current service cost 2.00 1.51
Past Service Cost - 1.53
Acquisition cost 0.65 1.10
Benefits paid (including transfer) (1.02) {0.89)
Actuarial gain on obligatioti-
experience {0.05) {0.51)
Closing defined benefit obligation 19.18 16.39

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening fair value of plan assets 14.94 11.57
Acquisition Adjustment .65 0.92
Interest income on plan assets 1.33 0.90
Contributions by employer 5.57 2.18
Benefits paid (including transfer) (1.02) (0.89)
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser

than discofnt rate ® ( : (0.33) 0.26
Closing fair value of plan assets 21.14 14.94

The Company expects t0 contribute Rs. 2.09 crote to gratuity fund during the year ended on March 31, 2020

{March 31, 2019: Rs, 2.18 crore).

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows:

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
(%) (%)
Investments with insurer managed funds 100 100

il
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Discount rate (in %) 7.60% 7.60%
Salary Escalation (in %) : 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on
assetls 7.60% 7.60%
Attrition rate {in %) 5.00% 5.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis fot significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Assumptions Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit ‘ -
obligation due to increase (1.36) (1.17)
Enpact on defined benefit
obligation due to decrease 1.56 1.34
Assumptions Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit
obligation due to increase .45 . 1.26
Impact on defined benefit ‘

" obligation due to decrease (1.33) (1.15)
Assumptions Aftrition rate
Sensitivity Level 1% - ' 1%
Impact on defined benefit 0.16 0.14
obligation due to increase :
Irpact on defined benefit (0.18) (0.16)
obligation due t¢ decrease

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a resuit of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

peried.

The average duration ofthe defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March
31, 2018 10 years).
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33, Commitments and Contingencies
L Leases
Operating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken office and residential space, information technology equipment under operafing lease
arrangements. Office premises are obtained on operating lease for terms ranging from 0-5 years and are
renewable upan agreement of both the Company and the lessor. There are no sub leases. The lease payment for
the year (excluding taxes) is Rs. 8.09 crore (March 31, 2018 Rs. 10.57 crore).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable eperaling leases are as follows:

| Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Minimum Lease Payments:
Within one year 4.42 2.48
After one-year but not more than five years 1.57 218 |
More than five years - -
Total future payments 5.99 4.66
IL Contingent labilities not provided for:
[ Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
(i In respect of Income tax matters * 6429 - 64,29
(i) In respect of In.difect tax matters [refer note (&) 4.21 190.42
& () below and other matters™ ]
(iii) | Claim against the Company not acknowledged 0.26 4147
as debt frefer (d) below and other matters*]
(iv) | In respect of other matters [refer (a) below] 23.601 15.72

*pertaining to various cases not included below
Performance guarantees given by the Compémy on its own behalt are not considered as contingent liability.

a) During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Delhi Cantonment Board (DCBY has raised provisional invoice
demanding property tex of Rs. 9.01 crore in respect of vacant land at [GI Airport for the Financial Year
2016-17.

The atrport area majorly consists of vacant land area which cannot be commercially [et out by the Company
because of operational safety, aircraft landing & take off and navigational requirements as per standards
laid down by International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAQ). However, hased on same computation
method as used for payment of property tax to South Delhi Municipal Corporation (*SDMC”), management
has made payment of Rs. 1.15 crore towards property tax for financial year 2016-17 and requested DCB to
withdraw its demand. ‘

Company has paid Rs. 1.12 crore and Rs. 1.15 crore for financial year 2018-19 and financial year 2017-18
respectively based on same computation as of financial year 2016-17.
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DCB had raised provisional invoice on April 13, 2018 demanding property tax of Rs. 9.01 crore for the
Financial Year 2018-19 along with arrears of Rs. 15.72 crore for FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18. Accordingly,
the Company has disclosed remaining amount of Rs, 23.61 crore in respect of FY 2016-17, F Y 2017-18 and

FY 2018-19 as contingent liability,

The Company has obtained a legal opinion; wherein it has been opined that liability w.r.t. earlier years cannot

be ruled out. As DCB has not raised any demand for earlier years, and the Company’s application for

adopting the same computation method as considered by SDMC, while arriving at the demand for the
financial year 2016-17, is pending / under consideration by DCB, the amouat of liability for earlier years is
unascertainable; and therefore no provision has been considered necessary by the company against such
demand in these standalone financial statements.

b) The Ministry of Civil Aviation (MoCA) issued a Circular No. AV 13028/001/2009-AS dated January 8,
2010 giving fresh guidelines regarding the expenditure which could be met out of the PSF (SC) and
subsequently clarified by MoCA vide order dated April 16,2010, Based on the said circular, the Company
is not debiting such security expenditure to PSF (SC) escrow account. Further, vide circular no, AV

13024/43/2003-SS (AD) dated May 17, 2012, it was further directed that any such expenditure already

debited was required to be credited back to PSF(SC) account, However, security expenditure amounting to
Rs. 24.48 crore was already incurred prior to April 16, 2010 and was debited o PSF (SC} account.

The Company had challenged the said circulars issued by MoCA before the Hon’ble Deihi High Court of

Deihi by way of a Writ Petition. The Hon’ble Court, vide its order dated December 21, 2012, had restrained
MoCA from taking any coercive measures in the form of initiation of criminal proceedings against the
Company and the matter is now listed for hearing on July 9, 2019. Based on an internal assessment and

aforesaid order of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, the management is confident that no liability in this regard

would be payable and as such no provision has been made i these standalone financial statements.

¢) MoCA issued an order no. AV 13024 /03/2011-AS (Pt. T) dated February 18, 2014 requiring the Airport
Operators to reverse the expenditure incurred, since inception to till date, towards procurement and

maintenance of security systems/equipment and on creation of fixed assets out of PSF (SC) escrow account -

opened and maintained by DIAL (the Airport Operator) in a fiduciary capacity. The Company had incurred

Rs. 207.25 crore towards capital expenditure (excluding related maintenance expense and interest thereon)

till March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Rs. 297.25 crore) out of PSF (SC) escrow account as per Standard
Operating Procedure (SOPs), guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from time to time on the subject
of utitization of PSF (8C) funds,

In the opinion of the management of the Company, the above order is contrary to and inconsistent with
SOPs, guidelines and clarification issued by MoCA from time to time in this regard and as such bhad
challenged the said order before Hon’ble High court of Delhi. The Hon’ble High Court of Dethi, vide its

order dated March 14, 2014, stayed recovery of amount already utilized by the Company from PSF (8C)

Escrow Account till date. The matter is now listed for hearing on July 9, 2019.

Further, MoCA has issued an order dated September 18, 2017, which is supplementary to the order dated
February 18, 2014 stating the approximate amount of reversal to be made by the Company towards capital
expenditure and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 295.58 crores and Rs. 368,19 crores respeclively, subject

to the order of the Hon’ble High court of Delhi,
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Based on an internal assessment, the management of the Company is of the view that no adjustments are

required to be made in the books of accounts, Further, as directed by the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi and
pending further orders, the Compeny has charged Rs. 96,39 crore from Aptil 1, 2014 till March 31, 2019
(March 31, 2018: Rs. 79.38 crote) towards the expenditure incurred on repair and maintenance of security
equipment to the standalone statement of profit and loss which includes Rs. 17.01 crore during the year
ended March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Rs 20.97 crore),

However, during the financial year 2018-19, pursuant to AERA order No. 30/ 2018-19 dated November 19,
2018 with respect to Company’s entitlement fo collect X-ray baggage charges from airlines, the Company
has remitted Rs. 119.66 crore to PSF (SC) account against the transfer of screening assets to the Company
from PSF (5C) with an undertaking to MoCA by the Company that in case the matter pending before the
Hon’ble High Court is decided in DIAL’s favour, DIAL will not claim this amount from MoCA.

d) The Company was entitled to custom duty credit scrip under Served from India Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign
Trade Policy issued by Government of India. Under the terms of SFIS, service providers are entitled to
custom duty credit scrip as a percentage of foreign exchange earned by the Company that can be utilized
for payment of import duty. Till March 31, 2014, the Company had cumulatively utilized custom duty credit
sctip amounting to Rs. 89.60 crore in lieu of payment of import duty in respect of impott of fixed assefs
(including capital work in progress) and thus, recorded fixed assets {including capital work in progress)
imported, at net amount (after excluding the amount of custom duty paid by using these scrips).

The Expert Advisory Committee (‘EAC?) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, pursuant to a

specific application by the Company in this regard, has clarified vide its opinion viz. TD/EAC/1484/13

dated November 19, 2013 that such scrips should be recognised and accounted as grant related to revenue

under erstwhile Accounting Standard 12 — Accounting for Government Grants.

Accordingly, as allowed under para 15 of erstwhile Accounting Standard 12, the Corapany had adjusted
(netted off) Rs. 80.39 crore, [being the difference between the value of duty credit scrips amounting to Rs.
89.60-crore and the depreciation amounting to Rs. 9.21 crore that ought to have been charged on such assets]
against certain expenditure, which in its view are related to obtaining such custom duty credit scrip

entitlements and had disclosed the same as prior period items (net) in the standalone financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2014,

However, Airpott Authority of India (' AAT’) has expressed different view on this and argued that amount

utilized under SFIS should be treated as revenue and accordingly revenue share on amount of Rs 89.60

crore is payable to AAIL Enforcing their view, AAL has written letter to ICICI bank on fuly 06, 2015

instructing bank to remit Rs. 41.21 crore from Receivable Escrow Account of the Company as revenue

share fo AAD’s bank account as per tetms of the escrow agreement.

Company had filed a writ petition against the AAT’s letter in Hon’ble Delhi High Court on July 10, 2013

disputing the demand and the letter unilaterally issued by AAT and prayed for quashing of demand by AAL

Hon’ble High Court has granted the interim relief and disposed with a direction to Company to seek remedy
under the provisions of Arbitration law. Accordingly Company filed a petition under section 9 of the
Arbitration and Conciliation Act seeking interim restraint to AAI from enforcing its demand which was

granted by the court in tavour of Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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The matter was duly heard and arbitration award was pronounced in favour of the Company on December
27, 2018, mentioning that the income earned by way of SFIS Serip does not fall under the definition of
Revenue as per OMDA as it is not related with any Aeronautical or Non-Aeronautical activities and it is of
the nature of capital receipt. Accordingly, no revenue share is payable to AAI by the Company on SFIS
revenue znd demand of AAI for revenue share stands rejected. -

However, AAL has filed an appeal in Hon’ble Delhi High Court on April 25, 2019 for selting aside the
_ arbitration award dated December 27, 2018. The next hearing is scheduled on May 24, 2019,

e) The Director General of Central Excise Intelligence, New Delhi had issued a Show Cause Notice F. NO.
574/CE/41/2014/Tnv /PT.IT/11327 dated October 10, 2014 on the Company, proposing a demand of service
tax of Rs. 59.91 crore (excluding interest and penalty) considering Advance Development Costs (‘ADC")
collected by Company from the Commercial Property Developers under the service tax category ‘Renting

of Immovable Propeity’.
The Company has replied to the show cause notice as teferred to above with appropriate authority on April
17,2015,
Subsequently, Additional Director General (Adjudication), DGCEI has passed Order No, 10/2016-8T dated
May 02, 2016 confirming demand of service tax of Rs. 54.31 crore and imposed equivalent penalty in
respect of this matter,

However, based on an interna) assessment and legal opinions obtained by the Company in this regard, the
Management is of the view that service tax is not leviable on ADC, as these are collected for development

of certain infrastructure facilities for the common use and not for the exclusive use of any developer. Service

tax liability on ADC, if any arises, shall be adjusted from Advance Development Costs coflected by
Company from the Commercial Property Developers.

The Company has filed appeal before CESTAT, New Delhi on August 02, 2016 by depositing Rs. 4.07
crore against the order dated May 02, 2016, the same has been shown under other loan and advances as
Deposit with Government Authorities including paid under protest. The matter was conciuded in final
hearing held on December 20, 2018 and the decision is pronounced on February 8, 2019 in favour of DIAL
setting aside the order of the Director Adjudication raising a demand of service tax of Rs. 54.31 crore.

Accordingly, the amount of penalty of Rs. 54.31 crore disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31, 2018
is now shown as Nil as at March 31, 2019,

f) The Commissioner of Service Tax, New Delhi had issued Six Show Cause Notices (SCN) and one
~ addendur to SCN on the Company, proposing a demand of service tax aggregating to Rs. 275.53 crore
(excluding irterest and penalty) on the collection of Development Fee (“DF”) from passengers in airport

for the period from March, 2009 to September, 2013. Out of total demand of service tax of Rs 275.53 crore,

service tax amouating to Rs 130.17 crore has already been paid by Company under protest.

The Company replied to the show cause notice referred to above with approptiate authority and the issue

was heard on merits on February 17, 2016,

Subsequently, the Commissioner of Service Tax, has passed Order WNo. C.No
I1E/ST/IV/16/Hqrs/ Adjr/DIAL/153/2015/1862-ST dated July 12, 2016 confirming the demand of service tax
of Rs. 262.06 crore (after giving cum duty effect) and out of the said demand has appropriated amount of Rs
130.17 crore already deposited by Company under protest towards service tax, and further imposed a penalty

of Rs 131.89 crore in respect of this matter.
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However, based on an internal assessment and legal views obtained by Company in this regard, the
management is of the view that service tax is not leviable on DF, as the DF is a statutory levy and is meant
to bridge financing gap funding for the airport project. The collection of DF from passengers is not in lien
of provision of any service to them. Further, there is no service provider and service recipient relationship
between the Company and the passengers paying DF. Service tax [iability, if any arises on DF, shall be
decided by AERA, keeping in view the final pronouncement of the matter.

The Company had filed an appeal against the order before CESTAT, New Delhi on October 10, 2016. The
matter was concluded in final hearing held on December 04, 2018 and the decision is pronounced on January
18, 2019 in favour of DIAL setting aside the order of the Commissioner levying service tax on ADF and
penalty amounting to Rs. 262,06 crore,

Accordingly, the amount of penalty of Rs.131.89 crore disclosed as contingent liability as at March 31,
2018 is now shown as Nil as at March 31, 2019.

g) There are numerous interpretative issued till now relating to the Hon’ble Supreme Court (8C) judgement
on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019, As a matter of caution, the Company has made a provision on
a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The company will update its provision, on receiving

further clarity on the subject

IIl.  Tinancial guarantees- The Company has not provided any financial guarantee other than
performance guarantee on its own behalf, to any party.

1v, Capital and Other Commitments:

i. Capital Commitments: .
At March 31, 2019, the Company has estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account not provided for [net of advances of Rs. 897.92 crore (March 3, 2018: Rs. 4.01
crore}] Rs. 9,326.05 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 154,99 crore).

il. Other Commitments:
i, As per the terms of OMDA, the Company is required o pay annual fees to AAI at 45.99% of the
revenue (as defined in OMDA) of the Company for an Initial term of 30 years starting from May
2006 and which can be extended by another 30 years on satisfaction of certain terms and conditions
pursuant to the provisions of OMDA. :

ii. In respect of its equity investment in East Delhi Waste Processing Company Private Limited, the
Company along with SELCO International Limited has to maintain minimum 51% sharcholding
for a period of 2 years from the commissioning of the project and thereafter minimum 26%
shareholding for next 10 years. The project has been commissioned with effect from April 01, 2017.

iii. As per the terms of Airport Operator Agreement, the Company is required to pay every year 3% of
previous year’s gross revenue as operator fee to Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide.

iv, In terms of Section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961, certain Ind AS adfustments at the Ind AS
transition date to be included in book profits equally over a period of five years starting from the
year of first time adoption of Ind AS i.e. FY 2016-17. Pursnant to above, the Company had made
Ind AS adjustments amounting to Rs. [84.79 crore as on March 31, 2016 and included 1/5th of the
same i.e. Rs. 36.96 crore while computing book profit for Financial Year 2016-17 , 2017-18 and
2018-19 and paid/provided MAT accordingly. The remaining amount of Rs. 73.91 crore will be
adjusted in the two subsequent years while computing book profit for MAT,
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v. Company had entered into “Call spread Option” with various banks for hedging the repayment of
6.125% Senior secured notes (2022) of USD 288.75 million and 6.125% Senior secured notes
(2026) of USD 522.60 million, which are repayable in February 2022 and October 2026
respectively. The terms of the agreements is as below:

Option Period Call spread ‘ Total Premium Premium outstanding
Value range Premium paid ¢ill as at
(in USD ' (INR/USD) Payable
Mit) From To March 31, Mareh | March 31,
- 2019 31,2019 2018
522,60 | December | October 22, | 66,85 - 101.86 1,241.30 266.49 974.81 1,160.57
6, 2016 2026
80,00 | February 6, | January 27, | 68.00 - 835.00 94.33 37.39 56.94 | 7587
2017 2022 ]
20875 | January 23, | January 27, | 3.80-83.00 198.34 49.76 148,59 198.08
2018 2022

With respect fo Subsidiary, Joint ventures and associates:

vi. DIAL entered into a tripartite Master Service Agreement (MSA) with WAISL Limited (Formerly
known as Wipro Airport IT Services Limited) [WAISL] and WIPRO Limited. This agreement
was further amended vide addendum number 17, dated April 5, 2018, in which Aptariksh Softtech
Private Limited has also become the party to the agreement. As per the agreement, DIAL is
committed to pay annually, premium fees to WAISL or receive from WAISL a concession fee,
determined and mutually agreed on the basis of estimated receivable and subsistence level (as
defined in the said MSA. further amended vide addendum number 19, dated October 1, 2018).
During year ended March 31, 2019, the Company accounted for Rs. 103.36 crore towards such
concession fee from WAISL and this is included in revenue from operations (March 31, 2018: Rs.

43.26 crore),

Also in case of delay in payment of dues from custorers to WAISL, the Company would fund the
deficit on a temporary basis tifl the time WAISL collects the dues from such customers. Tilt March
31, 2019, the Company has funded Rs. 11.17 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 11,02 crore) towards
shortfall in collection from customers, '

vii. In respect ofits equity investment in WATSL, the Company has to maintain minimum 26% of equity
shareholding directly or indirectly until the expiry of next 5 years from January 2010 and thereatter
minimum 20% of equity shareholding diréctly or indirectly until the expiry. of next 5 years.
However, the Company is proposing to sale its entire investment in WAISL Limited of Rs. 1.30
crores (13,00,000 shares of Rs. 10 each) to Antariksh Sofitech Private Limited based on valuation

of independent valuer.

viii. The Company has committed to provide financial support to Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited
(Subsidiary Company) to meet the liabilities of Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited {Subsidiary
Company}, as and when required.

(This &pace has been intentionally left blank)
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ix. The following investments have been pledged by the Company towards borrowings by these

companies:

Company Name

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

No. of Shares

Amount
(Rs.)

| No. of Shares

Amount
{Rs.)

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

11,976,000

119,760,600

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

18,853,703

188,537,030

18,853,703

188,537,030

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3)

1,680,000

16,800,000

16,80,000

16800,000

Private Limtited .

xi.

xii.

In respect of the Company’s investrment in Joint Venture (*TV’) entities and Associate Companies,
other JV/ associate partners have the first right of refusal in case, any of the IV/ associate partners
intend to sel] its stake subject to other terms and conditions of respective JV/ associate agreements.

In respect of its equity investment in GMR Bajoli Hoti Hydropower Private Limited (‘Bajoti Holi’),
the Company has to maintain minimum 17.33% of equity shareholding until the expiry of or early
termination of power purchase agreement dated September 11, 2017 entered between the Company
and the Bajoli Holi, expiring on May 03, 2036. The Company has invested Rs. 108.33 crore as

Equity Share Capital.

The Company has invested in DIGI Yatra foundation, a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) formed as
central platform for identity management of passengers, as Joint Venture (JV) of private airport
operators and AAT under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Not for Profit Organization). It
has been decided by AAI that initially for incorporation AAI DIAL and Bangalore International
Airport Limited (BIAL) will form this Company with shareholding of 26:37:37 respectively.
Currently DIGI Yatra foundation is having paid up capital of Rs. 10,000 and DIAL has invested
Rs. 3,700. In future, the equity share of Joint Venture Company (JVC) will be 26% of AAI and
remaining 74% will be équally divided amongst the Private Airport Operators viz. BIAL, Calcuita
International Airport Limited, DIAL, GMR Hyderabad International Alrport Limited (GHIAL),
Mumbai International Airport Limited (MIAL) i.e. 14.8% each.
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34, Related Party Transactions

2) Names of related parties and deseriplign of relationship:

Name of the related parties

Description of relatignship ;
GMR Enterprises Private Limited

Ultimate helding campany
GMR Infrastrycture Limited

i diate holding company
GMR Airporis Limited

Holding cempany

Subsidiary conipany Dethi Aerotropolis Private Limited

Dalhi Alport Parking Services Private Limited

Travel Food Setvices (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Dalhi Duty Free Sarvices Private Limited

Assooiate compan . - — —
’ pany Celebi Delhi Cargo Termiinal Management [ndia Private Limited

TV Delbi Airport Advertising Privace Limited

DICH Yatra Foundation'

(3MR Hyderabad Internationai Airport Limited

GMR Male International Alrport Privats Limited

GMER. Airport Devalopers Limiled

GMR Aviation Privatg Limited

Raxa Seourlty Sarvices Limited

GMR Krishnagiri SEZ Limlted

GMRK Chhattisgarh Enarizy Limited

GMR Kamal Tnargy Limited

Kakinada SEZ Limited {Formely known as Kakinada SEZ Private Limited)

GMR Warora Energy Limited

Foll idiaries (ingluding subsidiary mnies of the ultimate/ Intermed ate foldin -
ellow subsidiaries (including su fary comp ermediate Tolding gompany) TR Poaranpalt: Expresswnys Lumied

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expresaways Limited

GMR Consulting Services Private Limited

GMR Energy Teading Limited

GMR Vemagiri Power CGenoraiion Limited

GMR Goa Intemational Airpott Limited

GMR Sports Privaie Lintited

GV Aero Technic Limited

GMR Hogyicality and Retail Limited (Formerly GMR Hotels and Resosts Limited)

GMR Tuni Anakapatl Exprassways Litited

Fallow joint venture (including joint venture company of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding company) JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited (Formerly GMR Sports Privata Litnited)®

Delhi Aviation Sarvices Private Linited

Deelhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

Joint ventures - - " - —
WAISL Limited [Formerly known as Wipro Adrpart [T Services Limited”

iR Hajohi Holi Hydropgwar Private Limited”

Alrports Authority of ndia

Enterprises in respect of which the company i a joint venture " - -
P i pany 188 Frapont AG Frunikdfurt Airport Servicss Worldwide

Associate of member of a Group of which DIAL iz & member GMR Megawide Cabu Alrport Corporstion

Brterprises where significant influence of Key managoment Personrel or their relatives exisis GMR Yaralnksmi Foundation

Mr. G.M. Rao® — Bxecutive Chuairman

Mr. G B.8 Rafu® Managiog Director

Mr. Srinivas Boromidala®~ Nou Exeoutive Director

wir. Cranghi Kiran Knir” - Non Executive Director

Mr, K. Narayana Rao - Whola Time Dirsctar

M. Indana Prabhakara Rao- Executive Dirsctor

Mr, G. Subba Rao - Diractor

Key Management personhal
Mr. B.5.8 L. N, Bhaskarudu - Indepandent Director

Mr. M. R handran - Independent Director

s, Siva Kameewari Vissa - independent Dircotor

Mr. N.C. Sarabsswaran - Independent Divactos

Mr. Anuj Asgarwals Dirsctor (AAL Nominee)

M. 8. Suresh - Direcior (AAl Nominee)

My, AK, Dutta - Direotor (AAL Nomines)

1. The company has invested in DIGI Yatea foundatien, 4 Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Pormed as centeal platform for idsntity manageiuent of passongers, as Joint Venture (TV) of private airport
aperators and AAT under Section 8 of the Compaties Act, 2013 (Mot for Profit Organization). Further, it has been decided by AAT that initially for incorporetion AAL DIAL and Bangalore
International Altport Limited (BIAL) will foim this company with shareholding of 26:37:37 respectively, Currantly this company is having paid up capital of Rs. 10,000 {INR) and DIAL has invested
Rs. 3,700 {INR} only. In future, the aquity share of JVC will be 26% of AAL and remeining 74% will be equally divided amongst the Private Atrpott Operators viz. BIAL, Celeutta International Airport
Limised, DIAL, Eydembad Infernational Alrport Limited (TIAL), Murmnbat Intapnutional Airport Limited (MIAL) i.e. 14.8% each.

2. GMR Sports Private Limited is fellow jeint venture w.e.f June 13, 2018, Consequently, the name of the Ceinpany has been changed to JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited,

3. The namo of Wipro Airport [T Services Limited is changed to WAISL Limited with etfect from September 8, 2018,

4, W et fom September 11, 2017, ths Company has ontered inte a share subseription cum shareholder’s agreemant for eoquisition of 17.33% of shareholding in GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private
Limited. The Campany holds 20,85% of sharshalding in GMR Bajoli [oli Hydropower Privats Limited as at September 30, 2018. Pursuant io torms of the
apreement, GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited has become a joint venture of the Company.

5. W.af April 01,2018, Mr. GM Rao has bean appointed Executive Chairman of the company. i

6. Mr, Srinivas Bommidala ceased to be the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. end of business hours of March 31, 2018, Mr. (.3.8. Raju has been appointed as Managing
Direetar in place of Mr, Stinives Bormaidala w.e.f April 01,2018,

7. W.e.f Junc 01, 2018, Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar Non-Executive Director of the cumpany.

E)
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34 (b} Summary of balances with the above related partics are as follows:

Balances as at Date

March 31,2019

March 31, 2818

Investments in subsidiary. associates and Joint Ventures
Investmenfs in Unquoted Equity Share
Subsidiary Company

Dethi Asrotropolis Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Associate Companies

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Managernent India Privaie Limited 25,12 29,12
Delhi Duly Free Services Private Limited 39.92 39.92
Travel Food services (Dalhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 5.60 5.60
TIM Delivi Airport Advertising Private Limited 9.22 9.21
Delhi Aicport Parking Services Private Limited 40.64 40,64
Digi Yatra Foundation 0.00 -
Joint Ventures

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited 12.50 12.50
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 42.64 42.64
WAISL Limlted 1,30 1.30
GMR Bajoli Holl Hydropower Private Limited 108.33 108,33
Trade Revelvables (including marketipg fund

Intermediate holding compan

GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.74 0.36
Holding Company

GMR. Alrports Limited 0,20 -
Epterprises in respect of which the company is 2 joint vent

Alrpoits Authority of [ndia 0,01 0.07
Associate Companigs

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 16,37
TVl Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 0.67 30.37
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - 2.69
Travel Food Services (Defhi Terminal 3) Private Limited Q.60 0.86
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited . 15,57
Juint Ventures

GMR Bajoli Holl Hydropower Private Limited 2.48 0.30
WAISL Limited 574 3733
Fellow subsidiaries (inclading subsidiary cempanies of the ultimate/ Intermediate

bolding company)

GMR Aviation Private Limited 502 0,02
GMR Warora Energy Limited .31 1.46
GMR Vermagiri Power Generation Limited 2,81 0.41
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 195} 0.23
GMR. Agro Teshnic Limited - §.03
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam BExpressways Limited L37 -
Other Financial Assets - Current

Unbilled receivables {March 31, 2018 Unbifled revenue)

Intermediate finlding compaw

GMR Infrastructure Limited . .01 -
Lnterprises in respect of which the company is a joint venture

Alrports Authority of India 1.18 1.16
Associate Companies

Delhi Airpart Parking Services Privafe Limifed 3.24 -
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 27.67 -
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited 16,50 -
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 14,43 -
Travel Food Services (Deihi Terminal 3) Private Limited 1,40 -
Joint Ventures

WAISL Limited 21,06 -
Dethi Aviation Services Private Limited 1.54 -
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate

holding conpany)

GMR Aviation Private Limited (.01 -
GMR Warera Brergy Limited 0.01 -
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited .02
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34 {b) Summary of balances with the nbove related parties are as follows:

Balances as at Date

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Inter-company Deposits

Current

Iaterqpediate holding cgmpany

GMR Infrastrueture Limited 400.00 -
QOther recoyerables

Subsidiary Comnant

Delhi Aerotrapolis Private Limited 0.06 0.06
Joint Yentures

Delhi Aviation Sarvices Private Limited 0.19 0.06
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 0,15 0.13
WAISL Limited 11,17 8,09
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 0.1 0.03
Associzte Companies

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limiled 020 0.30
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0,09 0.05
Celebi Delhi Carga Tarminel Management India Private Limited 0.15 0.02
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 012 0,06
TIM Delhi Aitport Advertising Private Limited - 0.10
Enterprises in regpect of which the company is 2 Joint ventore

Adrports Authority of India 6.80 6.80
Fellow subsidiaries {(including subsidiary companjes of the ultimate/ Intermediate

holding company)

GMR Consulting Services Private Limited 0,01 0m
GMR Warora Energy Limited 0.02 0,01
Kakinada SEZ Limited 0.09 0.10
GMR Hyderabad International Airpoit Limited - 0.13
MR Male International Alrport Private Limited - 1.37
GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited 0.01 -
GMR GOA International Airport Lintited 0.25 0.25
GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited 0.03 0,01
MR Energy Trading Limited - 0.18
GMR Krishnegiri SEZ Limited .01 -
Assaciate of a member of 2 group of which DEAL is a member

GMR Megawide CEBU Alrport Corporation - 0.07
Non- Trade Receivables (including marketing fund)

Intermediate holding company

GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.01 0.12
Enferprises in respect of which the company is 2 joint venture

Airports Authority of India 2,12 338
Fellow snbsidiaries {Including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate

bolding company)

(MR Chhattisgarh Energy Limited 0,02 0.02
GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited - 0.01
GMR Warora Energy Limited 0.34 0.23
GMR Kamalanga Bnergy Limited 0,30 0.22
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 0,52 0.7
Associate Companies

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.03 0.20
Celebi Delhi Carge Tenninal Managernent India Private Limited - 0,16
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - 0,33
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited - 0.21
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 1.28
Joint Ventures

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited . 091
WATSL Limitsd - 23.76
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 0,26 0.07
Loans - Advances- Non-Current

Joint Ventures

WAISL Limited 2.82 2,82
Provision for Donbtful Advanees

Joint Ventures

WAISL Limited 2.82




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Dethi International Airpart Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the Standalena Kinancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

(All amounts in Rupees Crorg, except otherwise stated)

34 (b) Sumamary of balances with the above related parties are as follows:

Balances as at Date

Marveh 31, 2019

March 21, 2018

Trade payable {including marketing fund)

Iatermediate holding company

GMR Infrastructure Limited

Hoiding company

GMR Alrperts Limited

Assaciate Companies

TiM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited

Enterprises in vespect of which the company is g joint venture
Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Warldwide

Alrparts Authority of India

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidizry companies of the uktimate/ Intermediate
holding company)

Raxa Security Services Limited

GMR Aviation Private limited

GMR Energy Trading Limited

GMR Airport Developers Limited

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited

GMR Tuni Atakapalli Expressways Limited

Other Financial Liabilities at amortised cost- Non-current
Liabilitv for Voluntary retiremrent scheme

Enterprises In respect of which the company is 2 joint venture
Airports Authority of [ndia

Other Financial Liabilities at gmortised cost- Current
Liability for yoluntary vetivement scheme -
Enterprises In respect of which the company fs n joint venture

Airports Authority of India

Other Financial Liabilities st amortised cost- Curyent
Segurlty Denosits from trade concessionaires

Associate Companies

Delai Duty Free Services Private Limited

Celeb] Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limitec!
Delhi Alrpert Paridng Services Private Limited

T Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited

Joint Veatures

Drelhi Aviation Services Private Limited

Fellow subsidigries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate
holding company)

(MR Aviation Private Limited

GMR Aero Technic Limited

Other Finangial Ligbifities at amortised cost- Non Current

Security Deposits from trade concessionaires

Joint Ventures
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited-

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited

Assoclate Companies

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Setvices Private Limited

TIM Deihi Airport Advertising Private Limitsd

Travel Foud Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Tellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary compaanies of the ultimate/ Intermediate
holding company)

GMR Aero Techuie Limited

0.40
39.16

3.08
1.57
2,52
0.64
0.01

1.00
0.01
.42
0.73

0.09

011
0.22

34.10
12.92

29,01
0.46
113.94
9.45
3.14

1.93

4443

93 36
62,31

1.50

0.36
0.02
2.01
0.17

1.35

15347

110
0.01
.01

.09

0.11

23,09
11.49

21,26
0.77
102.69
9,07
2.80

0.20




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi Intarnational Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL.2006 PLC146936
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounis in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

34 (b) Summary of balances with the above related parties are as follows:

Balances as af Date

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Unearned Reverigc
Current

Assoclale Companies
TIM Delhi Airport Adverttising Private Limited

Delhi Afrport Parking Services Private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminai 3) Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Carge Terminal Management India Private Limited

Fellow subasidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate
holding company} -

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited

Unearned Revenue

Non-Cuprent

Asgaciate Companies
TIM Delhl Airport Advertising Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Deferred Revenne

Deferred Income on financial lisbjlities carvied at amortised cost - Current

Assgeiate Companies
Delhi Airport Parking Servises Privafe Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Carge Terminal Management India Private Limited

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited

Travel Food Services {Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Jolnt Ventures

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

Drelhi Aviation Services Private Limited i

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsjdiary companies of the ultimate/ intermediate

holding company}
GMR Aero Technic Limited

Deferred Revenue

Deferred Income on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost - Non-Current

Associate Companies
Delhi Afrport Parking Services Private Limited

Deihi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Celebi Delbi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

"T'IM Delhi Airport Advertising Privats Limited

Travel Food Serviees {Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Jolnt Yentures

Dethi Aviation Fuet Facility Private Limited

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ubtimate/ Intermediate

. |holding company)
GMR Aero Technic Limited

Other liabilittes-Current
Advances from customer
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facitity Private Limited

Associnte Companies
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (lacleding subsicliary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate
holding company)

GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited

0,54

0.29
0.14
0.47

.04
0.95

0.12
12.94
6.64
1.60
0.47

8.25
1.02

174
69,54
98.80
16,10

2,37

127.81
436

G.03

0.31
0.01
0.2%
0,16
0.56

0.15
12.99
3.51
1.66
047

6.39
1.02

1.86
82,74
8756
17.72

3.04

105.49
1.38

* \Accolintants / o
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Delhl International Alrport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limitod)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLCI46936
Nates to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All pmoaunts in Rupees Crore, except otherwlse stated)

34 (¢) Summary of transactions with the abave related parties is as follows:

Transactions During the perial

Mareh 31, 2019

Mareh 31, 2018

Non-current inyestments
Investment made ie Equjty Share
Associate Companies

Digi Yatva Foundation

Joint Ventures
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limitsd

Security Deposits from trade concesstonaires

Security Deposits Received

Associate Comparies

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management Tudia Private Limited

Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delli Terminal 3) Private Limited

Joint Ventnres

Drelhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

Delhi Aviation Sevviees Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (Including subsidiary companies of the uitimate/ Intermediate holding

gompany)
GMR Aero Teclnic Limited

Security Deposits from trade concessionaires
Security Deposits Refunded
Associate Companies

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Marketing Fund Billed
Associate Companies

Trelhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
Deihi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

Marketing Fund Utifised

Associnte Companles

Delti Pty Fres Services Private Limited

TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited

Travel Faod Services {Defhi Terninal 3} Private Limited

Ditilization of advance from commergial property develgpers

Fellow subsidiaries {including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holding
company)

GMR Airport Developers Limited

Capital Work in Progress

Asspciate Companies

Travel Food Services {Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited

Fellow substdinries {including subsidiary compsnics of the ultimate’ Intermediate holding

company)
GMR Airport Developers Limited

GMR Aviation Private Limited

Dividend Pald

Holding company

GMR Airperts Limited )

Enterprises in respect of which the Company Is a jeint venture
Alrports Authotity of Indiz

Fruport AG Frankfurt Alrport Services Worldwide

0.00

2372

39.96
0.04

1.51

12.55
1,14
0.01

.37
0.75
0,13

143

0.01

2.35
101

108,33

7.95
387

433

0.04(-

025

0.12

1L21
0.85
0.01

1087
¢35
0.05

2.63

10192

41.41
15.92




Delhi [nternational Airpert Limited (formerly known as Dethi International Airpert Private Limited)

CIN. Ua30330DL20061LC 146336
Notes to the Standalone Finaneial Statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2019
{All amouns in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

34 (¢) Summury of transactions with the abgve related parties is as follows:

Transactions During the period March 31,2019 March 31, 2048

Non-gerongutical revenue

Liptermediate hobdfng company

GMR Infrastructure Limited 1.98 2.61
Helding compasny

GMR Airports Limited 1.29 -
Joint Ventare

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 19,81 18.43
Delhi Avigtion Services Private Limited 9,28 322

WAISL Limited 103.57 45.26

GMR, Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 1.82 1.69

Assogiate Compantes

TIM Delld Alrport Advertising Private Limited 163.00 171,28

Celebi Delhi Carzo Terminal Management ndia Private Limited 202,67 189,45
Travel Food Services (Delii Tertminal 3) Private Limited 31.85 22,17
[Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 443,72 363,59
Drelhi Adrgort Parking Services Private Limited 31.02 23.81
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimate Haoldipg company)

(GMR Aviation Private Limited 0,06 0.04
MR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited 180 2.60
GMR Warora Energy Limited 1.82 1.69
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited 1.82 169
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited 1.82 .69
GMR Aero Technic Limited 0.54 0.03

erprises i respect of which the Company is & joint ventare

Airports Authority of Tndis .04 -
Aergnautical Revenue

Fellow subsidiaries (inclnding subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate bolding

company [

GMR Aviation Private Limited 0.22 0.19
Lnterprises in respect of which the Company Is a Joint venture

Airports Authority of indta 0.03 0.09
Other Income

Dividend Income gy Non-current Investments

Jaint Ventures .

Dellii Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited 213 8,33
Delli Aviation Services Private Limited 3,75 500

Agssoctate Companies

Delhi Duty Free Servives Private Litnited 35.52 3293
TIM, Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 10.61 9.68
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 11,18 10.16
Celebi Delhi Cargo Tenrinal Management udia Private Limited 146
Non-Aergriautical - Income on Security deposits

Agsockate Companies

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 0.i5 0.13

‘TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 1.63 1.63
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limfcd 13,12 13.09
Celebi Delhi Cergo Terminal Management [ndia Private Limited 6.64 553
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0,48 0.38
Joint Ventupas

Delhi Aviation Foel Facility Private Limited 8,32 4,49
Delhi Avialion Servioss Private Limited 1.03 1.03
Feilow subsidiaries (including subsidiayy companics of the ultimate Holfing compan

GMR Acro Teshnic Limited 0.03 -
Othier Revenue

Interest on Inter Company Deposits

Intermediate helding company

GMR Infinstructure Limited 36.40 .

Interest Income on Financiu] Assets carried at amortised cost

Associate Companies

Travel Food Services {Delhi Tenminal 3) Private Limited 0.01 2.62

e \ AccOlintants / x
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Dellii International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Alrport Private Limited)

CIN, Ug3033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the Stanilalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
{All amounss in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

34 () Summary of transactions with the above related parties Is as follows:

Transactlons During the periad

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Key mapagerial Remuneration patd/payvable
Shart-terip employee banofits®

Mz, G.M. Rao

Mr., Grandhi Kiran Kutar

. §rinivas Bemmidala

M. K. Narayana Rao

Mr, G,B.8 Raju

Mt, Indana Prabhakara Rao

Annual Fee

Enterprises iu respect of which the Company is a joint venture

Airports Authority of Fdia

Finance cost
Oither cost - Intarest on Revenue share

Enterprises in respect of which the Company is a jodnt yenture

Airports Authority of lndia

Finance Cost- Interest expense on financial linblity carried at amortised eost
Associate Companies

Dalhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

Thiv Delhi Afrport Advertising Private Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terrninal 3) Private Limited

Joint Venfures

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private Limited

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited

Fellow suhsidiaries (ineluding subsidiary companies of the wltimate/ fntermediate holding
company)

GMR Aero Technic Limited

Enterprises in respect of which the company is & jsint venture

Airpotts Authority of India

CSR Expendisure
Enterprises where significant influence of key Management personnel or their relative exists

GMR Varalakshini Fowndation

Manppwer hire charges

Dellow subsidiaries {ineluding subsidiary companies of the ultinatef Intermediate holding
company

GMR Airport Developsrs Limited

Atrport Operator fees

Enterprises In respeci of srhich the Company 15 a jeint venture
Fraport AG Franikfurt Airpoet Services Worldwide

Corporate Cost Allpcation
Intermediste Holding eompuny
GMR Infrastructure Limited

Holding compuny
GMR Adrports Limited

Services Received
Travelllng & Convevance- Churtering Cost
Fellow subsidiaries (Including subsidiary companies of the ultinate/ Intermedinte holdin

CoHTL] !any! .
GMR Aviation Private Limited

Meetings and Seminars

Holding compuny
GMR Adrports Limited

Security related expenses
llow subsidiaries (including subsidlary compantes of the ultimate/ Intermediate holdin

Lomupany

Raxa Secutity Services Limited

5.30
0.69

1.54
4.31
242

1,591.25

128

0.02
L1}
12.52
3.04
0.34

3.57
1.41

0.02

101

4.17

49.14

114,90

1100

80.47

1133

26.16

3.94
3.94
160

1,761.47

.49

0,08
0.99
1116
231
0,19

2.04
1,25

2.85

43.11

171.87

20,89

64,12

428

020

22,47

*Managerial remuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated ubsences, since these are provi

ded on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the Company a5 & whole.




Delhi Internationat Airport Limited (formerly kaown as Delbi Interuational Airpart Private Limited}

CIN, U63033DLZO06PLC146936
Notes to the Standalene Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2012
(ANl amonnts in Rapees Crare, cxeept otherwise stated)

34 (¢) Summary of {ransactions with the above related parties is as follows:

Transactions During the peried March 31, 2012 March 31, 2013

Repajr and Majntenange - IT' Syste

Joint Vemfures

WAISL Limited - 0.1
Uthiéy Expenses

Elactricity Charges

Pellow subsidiaries (ineluding subsidiayy compantes of the ultimute/ Tntermedigte holding

company} -

GMR Energy Trading Limited 36.40 3183
Electricity charges recoverved

Intermedizte holding company

GMR Infrestructure Limited 0.12 0.12
Joint Yentures

Delhi Aviation Setvices Private Limited 15,63 12.87
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Privats Limited 4 0,16
Associate Compantes

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 1.92 1.86
Celeli Delli Cargo Tenrinal Management India Private Limited 10.52 10,94
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 4,18 3.28
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3} Private Limited 522 3.12
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited 2.58 1.97
Fellow subsidiaries {including subsidiary companies of che ultintate/ Intermediate holding

company)

GMR. Aviation Private Limited 0.01 0.01
GMR Warora Energy Limited 0.22 0.27
GMER Tambaram Tindjvanam Expressways Limited 0.0% 6,12
GMR Vemagiti Power Generation Limited 0.24 0.29
GMR Katnalanga Energy Limited 015 0,18
Enterprises in rogpect of which the Campany is a joiut venture

Adrports Authority of India 13,79 17,07
Water charges recavered

Joint Ventures

Delhi Aviation Setvices Private Limited 020 on
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 0.03 0.02
Assgejate Companies

Delbi Airport Parking Services Private Linited 052 0.41
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.97 0.39
Celebi Delhi Cargn Terminal Management India Private Limited 2.82 1.27
Delli Duty Free Services Private Limited 001 0.02
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidinry companies of the uitimate/ Intermediate holding

Lompany} .

GMR Warora Energy Limited 0.02 . 0.01
Repovery of Collection Cha

Enterorises (i reapect of which the Company is a joint venture

Afrports Authority of India @51 . 3.07
Directars' sitting fees

ey management personnel

Mr. R.$.8 LN, Bhaskarudu 0.05 - 008
Ms. Siva Kaweswari Vissa 004 0.05
Mr, N.C. Sarabeswiran 004 0.03
r. G. Subba Rao 0.03 . 0.03
Mr. G.B.S. Raju - 0.01
Mr, Srinivas Bommidala 001 -
tvir, Grandhi Kiran Kumar o1 -
Mz Anuf Apparwal 01

Mr, 8. Suresh - 0.01
M. AK, Dutta - 0.01
Mz, M. Ramachandran 0,04 0.05
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delbd Interuational Airport Private Limited})

CIN. U63033DL2C06PLLC146936
Notes to the Standalone Flnauclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Crore, exeept otherwise stated)

34 {c) Summary of transactious with the abave related parites is as Follows:

‘Transactions During the perlod Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Forgign Traved « Others

Fallow subsldiaries (ncluding 8 mate/ lntermediate holdin

company

(VIR Male International Airport Private Limited 0.03 -
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related parties

Intermediate Bolding company

GivR Infrastructure Limited 0.02 0.02
Holding company

OMR Airports Limited 6.24 4.74
Enterprises i respect of which the Company is a joint ventyre

Atrports Authority of India

Joint Ventures

Delhi Aviation Setvices Private Limited 0.64 0,60
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited 0.01 001
WAISL Limited 20,96 10.14
Associnte Compnples

Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private Limited 0.4 0.54
TIM Delhi Airport Advertising Private Limited 0.69 (.48
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 0.79 0.57
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminul 3) Private Limited 0.48 0.45
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 042 0.35
Fellow subsidiaries (including subsidiary companies of the ultimatef Intermedlade bolding

companyy

MR Afrport Developers Linited 8.04 001
GMR. Tuni Aoakapalli Expressways Limited 0.1 0.02
GMR Aviationt Private Limited 0.01 "

GMR Warora Energy Limited 0.01 v

GMR, Pochanpelti Expressways Limited 0.03 0.04
GMER Consulting Services Limited 0.01 0.01
Raxa Security Servioss Limited 0.30
Kakinada SEZ Limited 0,09 0.08
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.01

GMR. Eaergy Trading Limited 0,01 0.02
Expenses incurred by velated parties an behalf of Company

Intermediate Holding company

GMR lnfrastrueturs Limited 034 0.02
Holding eompany

GMR Airports Limited 0.21 .18
Associate Companies

Travel Food Servicas (Delhi Terminat 3) Private Linted 0.15 a.10
Delhi Aviation Servives Private Limnited 0,02

Fellow subsidiaries (Including subsidiary companies of the ultimate/ Intermediate holdiy

company)

GMR Energy Trading Limited

MR Hyderabad Intemational Arport Limited 0.37 .

{GMR Airport Developers Limited 2,48 -

GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited 018 -

Kakinada SEZ Limitsd 0.07 -

MR, Hospitality & Retail Limited 0.03 -

oS
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

34 (d) Interest in significant investment in subsidiary, joint ventures and associates:

Services Limited)

. - . Ownership |  Dateof Country of
Name of Joint Venture Relationship interest incorporation | incorporation

Delhi Aerotropolis Private ' India

Limited Subsidiary 100.00% " May 22, 2007

Celebi Delhi-Cargo Terminal

Management India Private 26.00% June 18, 2009 India

Limited Associate

Delhi Duty Free Services 0 ‘ ;

Private Limited Associate 49.90% July 07, 2009 India

Delhi Airport Parking ' N February 11, .

Services Private Limited Associate 49.90% 2010 India
| Travel Food Services (Dethi " December 04, .

Terminal 3) Private Limited Associate 40.00% 2009 India

TIM Delhi Airport " oo .

Advertising Private Limited Associate 49.90% June 01, 2010 ‘ India

DIGI Yatra Foundation , 37.00% February 20, - India

Associate 2019

GMR Bajoli Holi

Hydropower Private Limited Joint Venture 20.85% Septezrg}a_? r1, India

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility . o August 11, o

Private Limited Jolnt Venture 26,00% 2009 India

Ei?é‘ﬂfﬁ:;?:fewmes Joint Venture 50.00% June 28, 2007 India

WAISL Limited (Formerly

known as Wipro Airport IT Joint Venture 26.00% Oag gg; 22, India

Terms and Condition of transaction with related parties:

Outstanding balances at the reporting date are secured’ unsecured and seftlement occurs in cash. For the year
ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed
by related parties (March 31, 2018: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial vear through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties:

The commitments in respect of related parties are provided in note 33(IV) above, forming part of these

standalone financial statements.

Transactions with key management personnel

The transaction with key management persomel includes the payment of directors sitting fees and managerial
remuneration which are provided in note 34(c) above. There are no other transactions with Key management

personnel.
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033DL2006PLL146936 _
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

35. Segment Information

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is operation of airport and providing allied
services and operates in a single business segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the standalone
financial statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

Major customers: Revenue from one customer of the Company is approximately Rs. 456.84 crore of the
Company’s total revenues (March 31, 2018: Revenus from one customer of the Company is approximately Rs.

376.68 crore of the Company’s total revenues)

36. Fair Values

The carrying smount of all financial assets and liabilities {except for certain other financial assets and labilities,
ie. “Instruments carried at fair value”) appearing in the standalone financial statements is reasonable
approximation of fair values. Such investments carried at fair value are disclosed below:

Carrying value Fair value

Particulars

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Investment in mutual fund 795.20 2,206.1% 795,20 2,206.19
Cash flow hedges-Call spread 194.63 0.97 194,63 0.97
option :
Total , 9389.83 : 2,207.16 989.83 2,207.16
Financial Liabilities
{carried at amortised cost)
Security Deposits from trade 534.42 461.02 £77.32 461.02
concessionaires
Security Deposits from commerctal 13.02 748 22.57 748
property developers :
Total 547.44 468,50 599,89 468.50

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair vilue of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumption were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with investment grade credit ratings, Derivatives are valued using valuation techniques, which
employs the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward
pricing and swap models, using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange.spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective
currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate curves gnd forward rate curves
of the underlying commodity. As at March 31, 2019, the marked-to-market vaiue of derivative asset positions is
net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk.
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Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)
CIN. U63033DL2006PLC146936

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year end

(All amounts in Rupees Crorg, except otherwise stated)

ed March 31, 2019

37. Fair value hierarchy

The following tabie provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019:

Fair value measurement using

Date of Tetal | Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valnation in active observable | unobservable
' markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at
fair value
Investment in mutual | March 31, 2019 795.20 795,20 - -
fund :
Cash flow hedges-
Call spread option

March 31, 2019 194.63 - 194.63 -
Total 989.83 795.20 194.63 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018:

Fair value measurement using

Date of Total | Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Leve] 3)
Assets measured at
fair value
Investment in mutual | March 31, 2018 | 2,206.19 2,206.19 - -
fund ‘
Cash flow hedges-
Call spread option
March 31,2018 0.97 - 0.97 -
Total 2,207.16 2,206.19 0.97 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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38. Risk Management
Financial risk management abjectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, security
deposits and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out
by senior management team that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s
policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all
constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at March 31, 2019,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other
post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financiel assets and liabilities of foreign operations. The
analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 33 (ii).

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

o The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective
~market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018,
e The sensitivity of equily is calculated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges and
hedges of & net investment in a foreign subsidiary at March 31, 2019 for the effects of the assumed
changes of the underlying risk. '

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financia! instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates, The Company is not exposed to risk of changes in market interest

rates as the borrowings of the Company are at fixed rate of interest.
el
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the foreign cutrency borrowings taken from banks.

Cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange call spread options measured at fair value through OCl are designated as hedging instruments
in cash flow hedges to hedge the USD INR conversion rate volatility with reference to the cash outflows on
settlement of its borrowings designated in USD.

The fair value of foreign exchange call spread option varies with the changes in foreign exchange rates and
repayment of future premium.,

Maych 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars Asgsets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Cash flow hedges-Call soread option 194,63 - 0.97 -

As at March 31, 2019, the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price for all call spread options of
USD 811.35 million. Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 209.34 crore has been released from Cash flow bedge
reserve to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss to neutralize the impact of Foreign exchange loss included
in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. :

As at March 31, 2018, for call spread‘opt'ions of USD 602.60 miilion, the USD spot rate is below the USD call
option strike price and hence not covered in hedge relationship ir respect of hedge ipstruments. However,
prospective testing is done and concluded to be effective. As a result, no hedge ineffectiveness arise requiring

recognition through profit or loss.

As on March 31, 2018, for call spread options of USD 208,75 million, taken during the F inancial Year 2017-18,
the USD spot rate is above the USD call option strike price. Accordingly, an amount of Rs, 33.82 crores has
been released from Cash flow hedge reserve to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss to neutratize the impact

of Foreign exchange loss included in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency exchange
tates, with ail other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit/ (loss) before tax is due to
changes in the fair value of labilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives. The impact on the
Company’s pre~tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash
flow hedges and Interest rate swap. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies

is not material.

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Impact on profit/ (loss) before tax

USD Sensitivity ‘
INR/USD- Increase by 5% (7.12) (6.53
INR/USD- decrease by 5% ‘ 7.12 6.53
EURQ Sensitivity
INR/EURO- Increase by 5% {0.09) (0.13)
INR/EURO- decrease by 3% ' 0.09 0.13
GBP Sensitivity
INR/GBP Increase by 5% (0.25) (0.16)
INR/GBP- decrease by 5% 0.25 0.16

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is to majntain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and
finance leases. None of the Company’s debt will mature in less than one year at March 31, 2019 (March 31,
2018; Nil} based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in tha standalone financial statements. The
Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial Habilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

. On Lessthan |3 to 12
Particulars demand 3 months | months 1to 5 years | >5years | Total
As at March 31, 2019
Borrowings . - - 1,996.85 | 3,614.04 5,610.89
Trade payables - 301.87 - - - 301.87
Other financial 71.14 210.42 85,55 171.96 |  2,540.08 | 3,079.15
liabilities i
Total 71.14 512.29 85.55 2,168.81 6,154.12 §,991.91
As at March 31, 2018
Borrowings - - - 1,886.69 3,414.67 5,301.36
Trade and other i 423.95 i i i 412.01
payables .
Other financial 236.38 130.32 76.82 186.13 | 2,124.70 | 2,766.2%
liabilities
Total 236.38 55427 76.82 2,072.82 5,539.37 8,479.66
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activiiies {primarily
trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this
assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any services to major customers are
generally covered by bank guarantee or other forms of credit assurance.

Financial instruments and cash deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is
managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to sach counter party.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s senior management on regular basis, and may be
updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2019
and March 3




Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly known as Delhi International Airpert Private Limited)

CIN. Ua3033DL2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31 2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Collateral

As at March 31, 2019 the security provided to bond holders and working capital facilities is as below;

(i) A first ranking pari passu charge/ assignment of all insurance policies, contractors’ guarantees and liquidated
damages to the maximum extent permissible under the OMDA and the Escrow Account Agreement;

(ii) A first ranking pari passu charge/assignment of all the rights; titles, permits, approvals and interests of the
Borrower in, to and in respect of the Project Documents, in accordance with and to the maximum extent
permitted under the OMDA. and the Escrow Account Agrecment;

(i) A first ranking pari passu charge on all the revenues / receivables of the Borrower (excluding dues to the
Authority) subject to the provisions of the Escrow Account Agreement and the OMDA,

39, Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in econemic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity plus total debt. The Company’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 80%, which is reviewed at end of each financial year.

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Borrowings 5,5604.65 | 5,249.12
Total debts (4) 5.564.65 5,249.12
Share Capital 2,450.00 2,450.00
Other Equity 268,04 418.08
Total Equity (B) 2,718.04 2,868.08
Total equity and total debt (C=A+B) 8,282.69 8,117.20
Gearing ratio (%)} (A/C) : 67.18% 64.67%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements, There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.
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40, Other Disclosures

a) AERA DF Order No.28/2011-12,30/2012-13 and AERA tariff order No, 03/2012-13 on determination
of Aeronautical Tariff; issued on November 14, 2011, December 28, 2012 and April 24, 2012

respectively

(i).  The Company had accrued Development Fee (D) amounting to Rs, 350 crore during the year 2012-
13, earmarked for construction of Alr Traffic Control (ATC} tower; during the current year ATC
construction work has been completed. DF amounting to Rs. 350 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 330
crore) has been adjusted against the expenditure on construction of ATC.

The total expenditure incurred on construction of ATC tower is Rs. 198.69 crore which exceads the
earmarked DF of Rs. 350 crore, as the construction got delayed due to security reasons and additional
requirements from time to time.

As per the approval in DIAL Board Meeting held on May 11, 2017, the Company has written a letter
to AAI for reimbursement of additional expense. However, AAI vide its letter dated November 29,
2018 has mentioned that there was no approval of additional cost incurred by DIAL on ATC and
therefore the additional cost would not be met out of DF. Accordingly, during the year ended March
3], 2019, the Company has capitalized the ATC tower at net cost of Rs. 48.69 crore after adjusting
DF of Rs. 350 crore, in its standalone financial statements.

(i). The Airport Economic Regulatory Authority of India (AERA) had passed an order vide Order No
30/2012-13 dated December 28, 2012 in respect of levy of Development fee at Delhi Airport. As per
the said order, the rate of Ajrport Development Fee (ADF) has been reduced from Rs. 200 to Rs. 100
and from Rs. 1,300 to Rs. 600 per embarking domestic and international passenger trespectively.
Further, as per the said order, such revised rates have come into force with effect from January 1,
2013 and estimated DF collection period has been extended up to April 2016, Further, AERA has
issued order No.47/2015-16 dated January 25, 2016, restricting cutoff date for collection of ADF
upto April 30, 2016. As per the order, AERA hes granted AAIL six months’ time after cutoff date
i.e April 30, 2016 to reconcile and close the account, and to arrive at the over recovery / under
recovery of ADF. However, the same has not yet been finalized. This over / under recovery wiil be
accounted for on final reconciliation of ADF pending with AAL However, DIAL has collected the
DF receivable in full and settled the DF loan on May 28, 2016.

b) The Company has a recetvable of Rs. 257.36 crore as at March 31, 2019 (March 31,.2018: Rs, 262.36
crores) (including unbilled receivable) from Air India Limited and its subsidiaries namely Indian Airlines
Limited, Airline Allied Services Limited and Air India Express Limited collectively referred as ‘Air India’.
During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has recognized receivable of Rs. 165.85 crore
(including GST) towards interest agreed to be paid by Air India Limited. In view of payment and continuous
reduction in the overdue quarter on quarter backed by continuing “Airport Enhancement and Financing
Service Agreement” with International Air Transport Association (‘TATA) for recovery of dues from Alr
India and considering the fact that Air India being a government enterprise/ undertaking, the Company
considers its due from Air India as good and fully recoverable. As agreed in 13% OMDA Implementation
Oversight Committee (OIOC) meeting, the Company has not paid revenue share on Rs. 135,76 crore
recognised as interest income on delayed payment by Air India.
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¢) Particulars of un-hedged and un-discounted foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date are as

under:
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars Amount Currency | Foreign Amount Currency | Foreign
(Rs. In Currency in | (Rs. In Currency in
Crores) Crores Crores) Crores
Trade Payables 1.80 EUR 0.02 2.66 EUR 0.03
5.08 GBP . 0.06 3135 GBP 0.03
- SGD - 0.04 SGD 0.00
114.89 usb 1.66 1 116,51 UsD 1.78
0.03 AUD 0.00 0.00 AUD 0.00
Other Current 27.26 USD 0.39 33.35 usD 0.51
Financial
Liabilities
Trade - USD - 16.37 USD (.25
Receivable
Non-Trade - USsD - 1.19 USD 0.02
Receivables ]
Advance - USD - 144 USD 0.02
recoverable in
cash or kind
Closing exchange rates in Rs:
Currency Mareh 31,2019 March 31, 2018
EUR 77.67 80.81
GBP 90.33 92.28
SGD - 49,82
USD 69.16 65.34
AUD 49,02 -

d) Additionsl information :

i) Earnings in foreign currency (On accrual basis, excluding service tax/G3T)

Particulars ' . For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Non-Aeronautical Services {Revenue from ‘ - 356.51

concessionaires)

Aeronautical Services (Revenue from 52.99 192.18

airlines)

Total 52.99 548.69
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if) CIF value of imports (On accrual basis)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Import of cepital goods 16,77 12.83
Import of stores and spares . 2.38 2.65
Total 19.15 15.48
iii) Expenditure in foreign currency (On accrual basis)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Particulars ‘
Interest on borrowings 372.95 33643
Professional and consultancy expenses 4.16 9.63
Finance costs 0.05 4.12
Other expenses 0.03 ' 17.27
Travelling and Conveyance 11.34 0.02
Total 388.53 - 367.47
iv) Consumption of stores and spares during the year:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Yo Amount % Amount
Imported 8.08 222 10.39 241
Indigenous 91.92 25,28 8061 20.79
Total 100 27,50 100 23.20

e) These standalone financial statements of the Company do not include Accounts for Passenger Service Fee -
Security Component [PSF- (SC)] as the satne are maintained separately in the fiduciary capacity by the Company
o behalf of Government of India and are governed by Standard Operating Procedure issued vide letter number
AV/13024/047/2003-S8/AD dated January 19, 2009 issued by Ministry of Civil Aviation, Government of India.

f) These standalone financial statements of the Company do not include billing to airlines for DF by the
Company. As per the Management, DIAL’s responsibility is restricted only to the billing on behalf of Airports
Authority of India (AAl) in accordance with provisions of AAI (Major Airports) Development Fee Rules, 2011

and DF SOP.
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g). The Company has received advance development costs of Rs. 680.14 crore including Rs. 6.93 crore related
to Phase II development (March 31, 2018: Rs. 660.06 crore , including Rs. 6.93 crore related to Phase 11
development) from various Developers at Commercial Property District towards facilitating the development of
common infrastructure there in. As per the term of the agreement, the Company will facilitate the development
of common infrastructure upon receipt of advance towards development cost in accordance with the instructions
and specifications in the agreement. Further, the Company has no right to escelate the development cost and in
case any portion of the advance development cost is not utilized by the Company towards development of any
infrastructure facility, the same shatl be returned to the Developers upon earlier of the expiry of the initial term
of agreement or upon termination of the development agréement, As at March 31, 2019, the Company has
incurred development expenditure of Rs. 552.38 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 519.19 crore) which has been
adjusted against the aforesaid ADC. Further, in case of Silver Resort Hotel India Private Limited, the Company .
has transferred Rs. 32.61 crore as unspent ADC in its propottion refundable to Silver Resort Hotel India Private
Limited to ‘Advances from customer’, basis the arbitration order {refer note 40 (m) below). Remaining ADC of
amount Rs. 95.15 crore including Rs, 6.93 crore related to Phase 11 development (March 3, 2018: Rs. 140.87

crore, including Rs. 6,93 crore related to Phase [I development) is disclosed under other Habilities.

h) The Company is collecting "Marketing Fund" at a specified percentage from various concessionaires as per
the agreement with respective concessionaires and to be utilized towards sales prometional activities as defined
in such agreements in accordance with the Matketing Fund policy adopted by the Company. As at March 31,
2019, the Company has accounted Rs 145.32 crore (March 31,2018: Rs. 116.62 crore) towards such Marketing
Fund and has incurred expenditure amounting to Rs. 88.10 orore (March 31, 2018: Rs. 65,11 crore) {(net of
income on temporary investments) till March 31, 2019 from the amount 50 collgcted, The balance amount of Rs.
57.22 crore pending utilization as at March 31,2019 (March 31, 2018:Rs.51.51 crore); as marketing fund billing
and utilization was not forming part of marketing fund) against such sales promotion activities is included under
"Other current liabilities" as specific fund to be used for the purposes to be approved by the Marketing fund
committes constituted for this purpose as per Marketing Fund Policy. :

i) The Company is of the view that certain incoms/ credits arising on adoption of Ind-AS were not in
contemplation of parties in April 2006 when this Concession Agreement i.e. OMDA was signed / entered.
Further, these income/credits in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss do not represent receipts from business
operations from any external sources and therefore, these incomes/credits should not form part of “Revenue” as
defined in OMDA for the purpose of calculating monthly annual fee (MAF ) payable to AAL Accordingly, the
Company, based on legal opinion has provided the MAF 1o AAI based on Revenue as per the Ind AS standalone
financial statements after adjusting such incomes/credits. Detail of such incomes / credits are as under:

For the year For the year

Description [ncomes forming part of ended March | ended March -
31,2019 31,2018

Construction income from commercial property Other operating income
developers ' 33.18 49,47
Discounting on fair valuation of deposits taken from Other operating income
commercial property developers ‘ 50.64 26.67
Discounting on fair valuation of deposits taken from  [Sale of services — Non
concessionaires : Aeronautical 53.44 52,54
Discounting on fair valuation of deposits given Dther income 0.35 0.39
Unrealised foreign exchange difference on Other income ) - 33.26
botrowings

| Significant financing component on revenue from Sale of services - Non . 4.80 -
contract with customers Aeranautical .

Further, the Company has also provided the “Airport Operator Fees” included in “other expenses” based on
“Revenue” for the financial year, after excluding the income/credits from above transactions. '
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i) The Company made an internal assessment on computation of Annual Fee payable to AAl and is of the view
that the Annual Fee has been paid to AAT on Gross Receipts credited to the standalone statement of profit and
loss {with certain exclusions) instead of on the “Revenue” as defined under OMDA. The legal opinion obtained
in this regard made it clear that there were excess payments of Annual Fee by DIAL by mistake from time to
time to AAIL Accordingly, as per the decision taken by the Board of Directors of the Company a ¢laim for returs
of excess Annual Fee paid to the AAI was raised on 26.12.2016. AAI has not agreed to the claim and insisted
DIAL to continue to pay Annual Fee on the same basis, which DIAL is paying under protest. Accordingly, the
dispute arose under OMDA but same could not be resolved amicably leading to the initiation of atbitration
proceedings, which have commenced from December, 2018, DIAL has submitted its statement of claim. AAL
has also filed its statement of defense dated April 29, 2019.

K) The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) had conducted the performance audit of PPP (Public
Private Partnership) project of AAI at Delhi Airport for the period 2006 to 2012, CAG has presented its report
before Rajya Sabha on August 17, 2012 wherein they have made certain observations on thie Company. The
Public Accounts Committee (PAC), constituted by the Parliament of India, has examined the CAG report and
submitted its observations and recommendations to Loksabha vide its Ninety fourth report in February 2014.

- The Management of the Company is of the view that the observations in the CAG report and the PAC report do
not have any financial impact on the Company.

I) As per the transfer pricing rules prescribed under the [ncome tax act, 1961, the Company is examining the
domestic and international transactions and documentation in respect thereof to ensure compliance with the said
rules. The management does not anticipate any material adjustment with regard to the transactions during year

ended March 31, 2019,

m) The Company had entered into ‘Development Agreement’ and the ‘Infrastructure Development and Service
Agreement’ with Silver Resort Hotel India Private Limited {hereinafter referred as ‘Developer’) on February 26,
2010 for development and operation of commetcial property area located in Aerocity for a period upto May 2,
2036; further extendable to another 30 years. As per terms of agreement, Developer was. required to pay the
License fee and other charges to the Company on annual basis. On - July 16, 2015, the Company has issued
rermination notice on account of failure by the Developer to pay the License Fees and other charges, required to
be paid under the agreements executed between the Company and the Developer. Consequently, the Developer
has invoked the arbitration process as per Infrastructure Development and Service Agreement.

The Arbitral Award was passed by the Ton’ble Arbitral Tribunal which was received by the Company on
September 08, 2017. The favorable award passed in majority by Tribunal granting Rs. 115.89 crores award to
DIAL and directing it to settle the award against security deposits of Rs. 192.88 crores lying with the Company
and pay the balance Rs. 76,99 crores to the Developer. However, one of the arbiirators has passed the dissenting
order granting award in faver of Developer amounting to Rs. 41 6.86 crores. Dissenting award granted by one of
the arbifrators is not enforceable / binding on the parties, being the minority order {dissenting opinion.

Accordingly, DIAL has deposited payment of Rs.76.13 crore (net of recovery of arbitration cost of Rs. 0.86
crore) in the Honble High Court of Delhi as per arbitration award. '

. Further, Silver resort has filed an appeal against the arbitration award before the Hon’ble High court. The matter
was heard for arguments on April 26, 2018 and the judgment was pronounced on May 8, 2018 in favour of
DIAL. ‘
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Pursuant to the above order, the Developer has preferred an appeal before Double Bench of Delhi High Court
which was heard on July 4, 2018 and the matter is now restricted only to the question of non- payment of interest
on the security deposit by DIAL to Developer; the next hearing is scheduled on August 7, 2019, Accordingly,
the Company has appropriated and accounted for the remaining amount of deposit i.e. Rs. 116.75 crore, as per

the arbitration award.

However, the Developer has filed an application for revision of order dated July 4, 2018 seeking refund of
licenses fees for the remaining part of financial year from the date of termination of agreement, the application
was heard on October 8, 2018 by Hen'ble Delhi High Court and was distnissed. As a matter of caution, the
Compeny has filed a Caveat before Hon’ble Supreme Court in case Developer challenges the order dated October

8,2018.

n) A survey under section 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the Company
by the Income Tax authorities on June 22 -23, 2016. The Tncome Tax department has sought information vide
its letter dated July 18, 2016, The management has provided all the information as asked by the department. The
management of the Company believes that it has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and does not expect any additional tax liability on account of survey operations.

0} The Government of India announced Services Export from India Scheme (SEIS) under Foreign Trade Policy
(FTP) 2015-20 under which the service provider of notified services is entitled to Duty Credit Scrips as a
. percentage of net foreign exchange (NFE} earned. These Secrips either can be used for payment of basic custom
duty on imports or can be transferred/traded in the market.

Pursuant to above, during the previous year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has received SEIS scrips of
Rs. 31.19 crore for financial year 2015-16, having validity till September 30, 2019. During the year ended March
31, 2019, the Company has aiso received SEIS scrips of Rs. 55.82 Crore for financial year 2016-17, having

validity till October 21, 2020.

The Company has so far utilized/sold Rs. 14.52 crore (March 31, 2018: Rs, 0.4 crore) out of these scrips and
considering the major expansion plans at the IGI airport, the Company is evaluating various options for

utilization of remaining Scrips.

The Serips received under SEIS are in nature of Government Grant and is similar to the Scrips received eatlicr
under Served from India Scheme (SFIS) of Foreign Trade Policy 2010-15. The Company is of the view that as
per the latest Arbitration Order dated December 27, 2018 in case of SFIS Scrip, the Income from SEIS Serip is
out of the purview of revenue definition as per OMDA. Accordingly, management believes that, no Annual Fee
is payable as per the provisions of OMDA, and has not been provided in these standalone financial statements.

p) Standards issued but not yet effective

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry. of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which notified nd AS 1186, Leases. The amendment rules are effective from
reporting periods beginning on or after April i, 2019. This standard replaces current guidance in Ind AS 17 and
is a far reaching change in accounting by lessees in particular.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires iessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to accounting for finance leases under Ind
AS 17. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information ina manner that faithfully
represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of standalone financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.
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Delhi International Airport Limtited (formerly known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited)

CIN. U63033D1L2006PLC146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize & 'right-of-use asset’ and a llease liability' for almost all leasing
arrangements. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
Ind AS 17. The lessor still has to classify leases as either finance or operating. :

Ind AS 116 is effective for the Company w.e.f April 01, 2019 using either one of the following two methods:

(a) Retrospectively to each prior reporting perfod presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients
as defined within [nd AS 116 (the full retrospective method); or

(b) Rétrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 116 recognized at the date.of
initial application (April 01, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 116

(the modified retrospective method).

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The
ultimate impact on leases resulting from the application of Ind AS 116 will be subject to assessments that are
dependent on many variables, including, but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the
mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its
standalone financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard
to its contractual arrangements. The Company has established an implementation team to implement Ind AS
116 related to leases and it continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional
disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of Ind AS 116 on the standalone financial statements will only be
possible once the implementation project has been completed.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Unecertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of Ind AS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The

Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

»  Whether an entity considers uacertain tax treatments separately

e The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

o How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates

s How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should
be followed. In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity might
consider, for example, (&) how it prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or {b) how the entity
expocts the taxation authority to make its examination and resolve issues that might arise from that examinatiorn.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, but certain
transition reliefs are available. The Company will apply the interpretation from its effective date. Company may
need to establish processes and procedures fo obtain information that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on

~ atimely basis.
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CIN. U63033DL2006PL.C146936
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(All amounts in Rupees Crore, except otherwise stated)

Amendments to Ind AS 19; Plan Amendment, Curfailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a pian amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs
during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtaliment or settlement

oceurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to:

e Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to re measure the net defined benefit liability (asset)
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

e Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendmens, curtailmett or
settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to re measure that net defined benefit

liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, ora gain or loss on seftlement,
without considering the effect of the asset ceiling, This amount is recognised in profit or loss,

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any
change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive

income.
The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the beginning of

the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 April 2019. These amendments will apply only to any
future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Company.

Annual improvement to Ind AS

Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to
develop a qualifying asset when substantially alt of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended

use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual
teporting periods beginning on or after I April 201%. Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these
amendments, the Company does not expect any effect on its standzlone financial statements. -
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q) Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in these
financia! statements have been rounded off or truncated as deemed appropriate by the management of the

Company.
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